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The corporate culture of Kunlun Energy Company Limited has its own unique advantages. Inheriting the fine
cultural core of the petroleum spirit, it’s oriented towards the market and international arena. With an
open mind for respect, equality, mutual benefit and win-win, we insist on an innovation-driven and green development
path, and actively fulfill our corporate social responsibility.
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To promote green development, the Group will smooth the different business strateg’y

and expedite its transformation from a natural gas distributor.into an internationally renowned‘L
and China’s first-class integrated green energy provider, ‘
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEREZRE
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEREBRE
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBEREERE
Currency unit: Renminbi million BB AREEET
2022 2021 2020 2019 2019 2018
2022 20214 20204 20194 20194 20184
For the year ended HZ12A318 note9 note10 note10
31 December LFE FiyEE9 fizE10 BizE10
Revenue and profit L PN:byil
Revenue LN 171,944 138,547 109,251 101,794 113,313 105,470
Profit before income tax expense b TS & A A& 7l 11,392 10,576 8,107 7,014 13,645 11,985
Core profit before income tax ~ BRFTEH B AIZLEF] 1
expense 12,481 10,481 7,486 7,722 14,353 13,266
Profit for the year R F 8,203 26,337 9,732 9,571 9,571 8,213
Profit for the year attributable to A2 B RE R FE & F
shareholders of the Company 5,228 23,016 6,063 5,551 5,551 4,634
— continuing operations ~RELEER 5,228 5,141 3,580 2,423 - -
- discontinued operations —BEIBECLEK - 17,875 2,483 3,128 - -
Core profit attributable to AREIRREGEZLRF 02
shareholders of the Company (2 6,281 22,891 5,442 6,199 6,199 5,885
- continuing operations ~BELEER 6,281 5,016 2,958 3,071 - -
- discontinued operations —BERIFHECEER - 17,875 2,484 3,128 = =
Eamings before interest, taxes, ~ MKFIS « §iB - TEREH
depreciation and amortisation  BI&FI(EBITDA)
(EBITDA) 16,319 15,453 12,888 11,623 20,710 19,009
Assets and liabilities EEHEE
Non-current assets ErBEE 87,553 87,444 81,145 118,247 118,247 109,930
Current assets mEEE 51,339 45,138 73,843 29,650 29,650 30,657
Non-current liabilities ErBEE 23,806 22,502 25,868 29,415 29,415 31,352
Current liabilities MEAE 34,384 34,219 44,593 39,297 39,297 39,141
Net assets BEFHE 80,702 75,861 84,527 79,185 79,185 70,094
Capital and reserve N
Share capital B 1 71 71 71 71 65
Reserve e 31,742 30,968 21,956 21,433 21,433 17,277
Equity attributable to AREIRREGERS
shareholders of the Company 59,908 56,275 53,584 49,988 49,988 42,704
Non-controlling interests R R 20,794 19,586 30,943 29,197 29,197 27,390
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBREBERE

Increase/
2022 2021 (Decrease)

For the year ended 31 December BE12AALEE 20225 20214 /08 D)

Financial indicators MR

Net profit margin ! SEREE O 4.77% 5.69% (0.92)

Return on total assets (ROA) @ 88 E R R E(ROA)? 6.04% 5.48% 0.56

Return on capital employed (ROCE) @ F & 7K [ ¥ & (ROCE)® 10.94% 11.01% (0.07)

Liabilities-to EBITDA ratio @ B EHEBITDARSE @ 3.57 3.67 (0.10)

Debts-to-net assets ratio © FEEBBXO 32.03% 33.19% (1.16)

Gearing ratio © BABEEO 24.26% 24.92% (0.66)

Debts-to-assets ratio BERGBXO 18.61% 18.99% (0.38)

Average finance cost © TEREKA © 3.66% 3.64% 0.02

Earnings per share (Basic) (RMB cent)  &R&F (EX) (ARED) 60.38 265.80

— continuing operations —RRESEER 60.38 59.37
— discontinued operations —BRIRFECEED - 206.43

Dividend per share (RMB cent) FERRE (AR%D) 25.39 20.78

Dividend payout ratio R LGl 35.00% 35.00%

Notes: BT

1) Net profit margin is profit for the year from continuing operations divided by (1) FREEERELEEBTNRMBRAFELE
revenue from continuing operations. EBRA -

@) Return on total assets is profit for the year from continuing operations divided — (2) BEERREIRIFELEEB T N TR AR E
by average total assets from continuing operations. BRI EELRTE -

@3) Return on capital employed is the ratio of profit before income tax expense and ~ (3) FEAOREERECEESHRSHER R
interest from continuing operations divided by total assets less current liabilities BRNGMBRAEC S ERBEERTBAE -
from continuing operations.

(4) Liabilities-to EBITDA ratio is the ratio of total liabilities from continuing operations ~ (4) B EHEBITDAB S IE I EL S EBB B ER R
divided by EBITDA. B B - WEREHENRT -

(5) Debts-to-net assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings  (5) FEEAGREHEEENREAGEZMBRLE
and lease liabilities divided by total equity. Em o

(6)  Gearing ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings, and lease  (6) ERBEXRETSEERREEE MR AGE
liabilities divided by the sum of total equity, interest-bearing borrowings and lease @ TREREAEAaEZM -
liability.

@) Debts-to-assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings and  (7) BEABEXRETSEERAEEEZBRINAE
lease liabilities divided by total assets. E e

(8)  Average finance cost is the ratio of aggregated amount of each category of  (8)  TFHREKANIEFEAMBEMANREEFELE
borrowing multiply by its interest rate divided by the total borrowing from EBBEBLL - RENE -
continuing operations.

©) Due to certain Group’s businesses are classified as discontinued operations in ~ (9) HR2020F AN EEBHEBE ST A KRILFE
2020. The financial information of the Group has been restated. EER - AEBENPBEHNEED -

(10)  The financial information of the Group has not been restated for the potential  (10) AKEHBERAREELEC KR IEFELE?
disposal of discontinued operations as the directors consider that the unrestated BHETES  REAREZRAR/ARALCEINNTBEE
financial information is more appropriate for year-on-year comparison of the HBEREERLERAEEXBEENE(LER -
change in the Group’s business operation.

(11)  Core profit before income tax expense is defined as profit before income tax  (11)  BRAAIBHERARZLEFIETEREDE - BER
expense excluding impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, intangible Bl BREEEREBERES RS EIEZHR
assets and exchange gains/losses. FriSii & A A=A

(12)  Core profit attributable to shareholders of the Company is defined as profit  (12) AR EREEEZ O mMETEIEARQ R REE

attributable to shareholders of the Company excluding impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and exchange gains/losses
attributable to shareholders of the Company and its related tax effect.

HZM%E - BERZE - B EERERERE
Alas EEREEEREYE 2 AR FRRE
EEF °

EREBRERAT —S-—FFERE



FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBREBERE

For the year ended BZ12A3BLEE 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
31 December 20224 20214 20204 20194 20184
Sales volume of products ERERE
City gas iy s=) 362 336 274 200 147
CNG CNG 28 25 23 29 26
LNG LNG 54 56 78 48 42
Others Hith 6 3 3 3 5
Sales volume of natural gas AARHER

(100 million cubic metres) (B AK) 450 420 378 280 220
Sales volume of LPG LPGHHEER

(10,000 tonnes) (&) 562 599 521 607 700
Stations in operation BEELY
CNG stations CNGh 495 542 562 562 561
NG stations LNGU4 329 445 615 612 609

& 11 l
Unit: 100 million cublic metres B : B3 7K
32.51 \ 32.44\
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBREBRE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2019 2018
2022 20214 20204 20194 20194 20184
For the year ended BZ12A31HLEE note 1
31 December st
LNG gasification volume INGRILE 152 153 113 122 162 189
LNG entrucking volume INGEES 6 12 29 18 24 23
LNG processing volume INGIIE 28 25 24 20 20 16
LNG processing and terminal LNGIIIE{#ER
(100 million cubic metres) (B AK) 186 190 166 160 206 228
Plants and terminals in CEE TRAELL
operation
LNG plants LNGLJ& 15 16 15 14 14 15
LNG terminals LNGHE Uk 2 2 2 2 3 3
Equity sales volume of FhERHER
crude oil
(10,000 barrels) (&%) 1,105 1,172 1,219 1,354 1,354 1,327
Natural gas pipeline AAREH
transmission -
(100 milion cubic metres) (R K) = - = = 556 529
Notes: MiEE -

(1)  Due to certain Group’s businesses are classified as discontinued operations in (1) HAR2020F R EBINEKBE DB ADKIEFHE
2020. The financial information of the Group has been restated. KEXER - AEENMBEREEY -

ERERERAR —2=-—FFERE §



LOCATIONS OF NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

9

1 A

CNG station and LNG LNG Plant in LNG Terminal in
station in operation operation operation Tota
Province & 13 B8 2 CNGUS M LNG, EEELNGIER BE=LNGE I AH
Xinjiang 758 222 3 = 225
Hebei jAldE 64 2 1 67
Shandong 11 & 137 1 - 138
Henan JA 21 - - 21
Shanxi L7 & 1 - 6
Sichuan P4)1| 38 2 - 40
Inner Mongolia 5 & 31 1 = 32
Jiangsu JT &k 46 - 1 47
Liaoning &%= 10 1 = 11
Shaanxi kg 16 1 - 17
Tianjin X2 6 - - 6
Hubei #1k 33 1 - 34
Ningxia Z & 25 - - 25
Guangdong X 10 - - 10
Hainan /&7 22 - - 22
Guizhou &M 13 - - 13
Yunnan £ 7 = = 7
Zhejiang #T/T 5 - - 5
Gansu H# 26 1 - 27
Qinghai 578 5 1 - 6
Beijing 4t 1 = = 1
Jilin AR 10 - - 10
Shanghai /& 7 - - 7
Anhui 21 9 - - 9
Hunan J#F8 24 - - 24
Guangxi FEEFH 7 - - 7
Heilongjiang E8ET 15 = = 15
Jiangxi L7 2 - - 2
Fujian &£ 4 - - 4
Tibet FafE 3 - - 3
824 15 2 841

This map is not to scale, for reference only.
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LOCATIONS OF NATURAL GAS BUSINESS
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LOCATIONS OF CRUDE OIL EXPLORATION AND

PRODUCTION BUSINESS
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LOCATIONS OF CRUDE OIL EXPLORATION AND
PRODUCTION BUSINESS
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREWwE

Fu Bin {43

Chairman and
Executive Director

ETEFRATEF

Respected shareholders:

For the year ending 31 December 2022 (“the Year”), Kunlun Energy
Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
realized an revenue of RMB171,944 million, an increase of RMB33,397
million, or 24.1%, year-on-year. Profits before income tax was
RMB11,392 million, a year-on-year increase of RMB816 million, or
7.7%, profits attributable to shareholders amounted to RMB5,228
million, a year-on-year increase of RMB87 million, or 1.7%, and basic
earnings per share stood at RMB60.38 cent. If impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment and exchange gains/losses are not
considered, core profits before income tax were RMB12,481 million,
up RMB2,000 million, or 19.1%, year-on-year, core profits attributable
to shareholders were RMB6,281 million, up RMB1,265 million, or
25.2%, year-on-year, and basic earnings per share were RMB72.54
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cent. Sales of natural gas, its primary business, saw increases in
both volume and economic benefits, with the sales volume totaling
44,988 million cubic metres, a year-on-year increase of 2,989 million
cubic metres, or 7.1%, and the profits before income tax amounting
to RMB7,826 million, a year-on-year increase of RMB2,072 million,
or 36.0%.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, amid the escalating geopolitical conflicts and hiking oil and
gas prices internationally coupled with the increasing uncertainties and
the slowed economic growth, the natural gas market saw tightening yet
balanced supply and demand while regulations are increasingly strict,
resulting in a new reform on the industrial layout. Highly responsive and
enterprising, the Group commits to support all stakeholders including

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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shareholders, employees, customers and communities. It worked to
expand the end market, adjust structures, promote transition and
control risks. By doing so, it significantly improved the profitability for
its core businesses, accelerated the implementation of new energy
projects, produced a remarkable effect for its value-added business,
and saw a further strengthening of production through its sustainable
foundation and achieved remarkable operating results.

Despite pressures from rising cost and suppressed demand,
the Group achieved growths in both the volume and quality
of sales for its core business. Seizing the opportunity of market-
oriented reform, it relied on the scale of customers and network sites
that covered the entire nation and gave full play to the advantages
of resources and infrastructure. It put equal emphasis on tapping
existing markets and developing new markets, signed 62 framework
agreements on cooperation, invested in 23 integrally installed suppliers
including Taishan Gas, and completed consolidation of the financial
statements for 20 projects including Huangshi Newport. The newly
added annual sales capacity of the projects controlled by the Group
exceeded 3.2 billion cubic meters. As a result, the Group saw the
gas retail volume up by 8.0% year-on-year to 27,762 million cubic
metres, the number of customers up by 867,400 year-on-year to
14.713 million. Thanks to its active pricing adjustment and continuous
optimization of user and regional structure, the proportion of retail
sales up by 1 percentage points, and the purchase and marketing
price differential up by 4.1% year-on-year.

The Group leveraged lean management to build competence
with low cost, with the campaign to boost both quality and
efficiency paying off. Under the natural increase in operating expenses
as a result of business expansion and sales increase, it promoted
efforts by all employees to cut cost and improve efficiency, further
bringing down the proportion of sales and administrative expenses
over revenue by 1.4%. It drove the mutual, interactive and coordinated
development across the LNG chain, where LNG terminals maintained
high load. LNG plant substantially achieved breakeven. The “ship-to-
ship” refueling-at-sea business achieved breakthroughs in the Greater
Bay Area, and successfully opened the bonded policy channel for
Shenzhen'’s refueling-at-sea project. In addition, It continued to enrich
the channels for LPG purchase, lead to a remarkable improvement
on benefit creation capability of terminals.

15 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022
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The Group steadily expanded investment in new industry, with
the room for industrial chain transition further broadened.
Integrated into the new-type energy system in China and aligned
with the trend of green and low-carbon development, it promoted the
use of clean energy at self-owned stations and the development of
comprehensive energy and distributed energy projects. By far, it has
put into use of a number of distributed PV projects including Baihe
Primary Station, Shanghai, built 11 distributed projects with a total
installed capacity of 230 kW in Shandong, Guizhou, Hainan, etc., and
gradually developed a project system in which some projects were
built, some were commenced and some were planned. A marketing
management framework system was established to make full use
of the purchase and sales channels for special gas. Based on the
multi-business community of “smart internet of things, smart homes”,
the “Kunlun Smart™ online and offline integrated e-commerce service
platform was officially launched and put into operation.

Committed to delivering quality and safe services to customers,
the Group achieved continuous improvement in ESG rating. It
completed the digital map drawing of urban gas pipelines of 120,000
km long, and continuously improved the informatization level of gas
supervision. Thus, the intelligent supervision and early warning that
covered the entire process, from stations, equipment and facilities
and pipeline networks to various gas users, was realized which led
to the continuous enhancement in safety. Meanwhile, the “Natural
Gas Customer Service Standardization Process Manual” was issued
and implemented, to carry out customer satisfaction surveys and
operate 956100 customer service hotlines. Such customer service
system gained wide appreciation due to its standardized service,
unified standard, and professional response. Moreover, it promoted
the implementation of the carbon peak carbon neutral action plan
while helping the revitalization of rural areas in Yunnan, Guizhou and
Hunan, to respond to the concerns of the capital market. Its ESG rating
revised upward from BB to BBB. It was selected as a model enterprise
of state-owned enterprise with respect to corporate governance by
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission,
and was rated as excellent by the “Double Hundred Enterprises” of
the SASAC.
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OPERATING RESULT

The natural gas sales business actively responded to market
changes by continuously optimizing the allocation of resources and
sales structure and implementing accurate marketing to increase the
penetration rate and realize the growth in sales expansion. Also, it
strived to develop urban gas market and promoted the completion
of quality project. It brought about 18 new projects controlled by the
Group, including 16 urban gas projects and 2 sub-pipeline projects,
and 5 new projects in which the Group had equity interests. The new
urban gas projects which were controlled by the Group are expected
to increase the sales capacity by 3.2 billion cubic metres.

During the Year, natural gas sales volume was 44,988 million cubic
metres, representing a year-on-year increase of 7.1%, among which,
retail gas sales volume was 27,762 million cubic metres, representing
a year-on-year increase of 8.0%. The cumulative number of users
reached 14.713 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.3%.
The Natural Gas Sales business recorded a revenue of RMB133,987
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 25.8%.

The LPG sales business actively responded to the decrease in
domestic resources by steadily expanding resource channels and
increasing the marine import of isobutane and land import channels
of resources in Kazakhstan. In addition, it continued to optimize the
allocation of resources and the layout of sales network by building
diversified LPG distribution channels and promoting the construction
of its self-owned terminal management platform. A stable terminal
sales scale was maintained.

During the Year, LPG sales volume was 5.6155 million tonnes,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.2%. This business recorded
a revenue of RMB29,321 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 21.6%.

During the year, in respect of the LNG processing and terminal
business, The LNG terminals maintained secure and smooth production
and operation, and achieved better-than-expected operation capacity
and efficiency. Giving full play to the advantages of the integrated
LNG industrial chain, the operating efficiency of LNG plants has been
continuously improved, resulting in that 12 LNG plants made profits,
and 2 LNG plants achieved loss reduction during the Year.
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During the Year, LNG gasification and entrucking volume of Tangshan
and Jiangsu LNG terminals amounted to 15,833 million cubic metres
in total, representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.0%. The average
operation capacity of these two LNG terminals was 87.9%, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 3.6 percentage points. 15 LNG processing
plants were put into operation during the Year, and the processing
volume was 2,783 million cubic metres, representing a year-on-year
increase of 323 million cubic metres. The average production capacity
of 15 plants under continuous operation was 44.3%.

During the Year, LNG Processing and Terminal business recorded a
revenue of RMB12,810 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 19.4%.

During the year, in respect of the exploration and production
business, the exploration and production projects realized stable
operation and improved benefits. During the Year, the equity sales
volume of crude oil was 11.05 million barrels, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 0.67 million barrels or 5.7%. The average crude oil
selling price increased to US$77.5/barrel from US$56.6/barrel of last
year. Sales revenue of crude oil was RMB2,286 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 32.0%.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In 2023, as the international gas market sees eased tension between
supply and demand and declining prices and China’s economy picks
up faster with gas demand recovering in industry, power generation,
transport, construction and other areas, gas consumption will reach a
growth rate of more than 6%. The Chinese government proactively and
steadily advances carbon peaking and carbon neutrality, and facilitates
the building of a new-type energy system, boosting the development of
the gas industry and creating more room for the integration between
gas and other new energies. The Group will firmly grasp the new
opportunities brought by low-carbon transformation by deploying new
energy based on its own advantages and expanding new business
models that focus on customer needs in order to create a new model
of digital governance and create a new stage for high-quality growth.

In pursuit of quality and efficient natural gas sales, the Group
will further sharpen the competitiveness of its core business, focus on
integrated market and overall cooperation with large gas groups based
on the “One City, One Gas Supplier” move”. Retail sales volume grew
by 10% while the number of users increased by 800,000. It will refine
the LNG sales structure and accelerate the construction progress
of Jiangsu LNG station and urban fuel emergency storage facilities.
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The utilization of LNG plant peak regulation and efficiency creation
will further enhance the ability to guarantee supply and expand the
space for its business. Moreover, the network construction of LPG
natural gas sales for civil use which focuses on direct delivery will
be accelerated in order to release the efficiency creation potential of
natural gas sales in full.

Upholding its transition towards a green energy supplier, the
Group will build a diverse business system adapted to new energies,
and drive the leapfrog development of new energies based on gas and
electricity. 30 new energy projects were actively promoted to make
substantial progress. The construction of 10 “zero-carbon model sites”
was completed as the pilot project of near-zero emissions across
the province began. In addition, the continuous enrichment of sales
varieties will form a complete production, supply, storage and sales
system for special gas while the in-depth exploration for the growth
of value-added business has led to a year-on-year increase of more
than 10% in operating income.

Committed to be a leader in smart gas, the Group will build
an intelligent system to support industrial upgrade and vigorously
promote the “Digital Xing’an” campaign to improve perception, early
warning and response capability, and intensify risk control at the
customer end. It will safeguard 100% security inspection rate for public
services and industrial users. Moreover, informatization upgrade will
be implemented, and the construction of digital transformation model
pilot projects will be carried out for the realization of precise matching
between resources and logistics, markets and customers, as well as
funds and prices. The Group will build the information platform for
ecosystem protection, improve ESG performance and advance its
building as an intelligent, healthy, green and safe enterprise.

Devoted to meeting customer demand with better-than-
expected services to drive higher customer satisfaction, the
Group will build a marketing system adapted to market competition,
and forge stronger ties with local community, consumers and partners
through specialized services. It will accelerate the integration and
mutual promotion of customer service platform, business platform and
commercial platform to meet the diversified needs of customers. It
will create a customer service and maintenance system with leveled
response, unified standards and centralized operation. In addition, it will
actively carry out customer rating and customer manager pilots. The
special mission of “implementing high-quality services and improving
customer satisfaction” has been commenced, and its satisfaction rate
increased to more than 95%.
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Working to create internal drivers through reform and innovation,
the Group will further modernize corporate governance to meet the
trends, and promote reforms to realize standardized governance,
market-oriented employment and targeted incentives, with a focus on
driving substantive progress in medium and long-term incentives. It
will strengthen penetration management at legal entities of all levels,
advance corporate governance according to law, and control risks
in the whole process. It will stick to the “low cost” strategy, and
press ahead with the campaign to boost quality and efficiency. It will
improve engagement with investors to improve performance in the
capital market.

In 2023, guided by the vision of building a globally famous and
domestically leading supplier of green energies, the Group will uphold
market-oriented operation to be closer to the market for the research
and judgement on consumption changes. Focusing on customers, it
will expand the space for value growth. Closely monitoring policies,
it will seek transformation as well as the comprehensive upgrade
of business structure, service capabilities, business models, and
governance methods. Moreover, it will work with all parties concerned
in the society to create win-win outcomes and deliver shareholders
higher returns.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | hereby show my sincere thanks
to all customers, partners and shareholders for your support and all
employees for your hard work.

By order of the Board,
Fu Bin
Chairman and Executive Director
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD AT

During the year, although the Group was affected by factors such as
high international gas prices and the market change, we still insisted
on making active response, focusing on developing the natural

gas sales market and implementing accurate marketing to realise
continuous growth in our overall performance. Profit before income
tax expense was approximately RMB11,392 million, representing an
increase of 7.7% as compared with RMB10,576 million for the last
year. Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the Year
was approximately RMB5,228 million, representing an increase of
1.7% as compared with RMB5,141 million for the last year.
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Revenue

Revenue for the Year was approximately RMB171,944 million,
representing an increase of 24.1% as compared with the amount of
RMB138,547 million for the last year. Due to the increase in sales
volume and selling price of the natural gas, leading to an increase in
the revenue of the Natural Gas Sales segment.

Other gains, net

Other gains, net, for the Year was approximately RMB62 million (2021:
RMB934 million). The decrease were mainly due to the exchange loss
recognised as a result of depreciation of RMB against USD during
the Year.

Interest income

Interest income for the Year was approximately RMB859 million,
representing an increase of 62.4% as compared with amount of
RMB529 million for the last year. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in average balance of time deposits with maturities over three
months resulted from the consideration received in late 2021 related to
the disposal of the Company’s 60% equity interest in Beijing Pipeline
and 75% equity interest in Dalian LNG. The increase was resulted
from the enhanced capital management of the Group.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD T

Purchases, services and others

Purchases, services and others for the Year were approximately
RMB146,077 million, representing an increase of 26.0% as compared
with amount of RMB115,893 million for the last year. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in purchase volume and purchase
price of natural gas which was generally in line with the increase in
sales of Natural Gas Sales segment.

Employee compensation costs

Employee compensation costs for the Year was approximately
RMB5,749 million, representing an increase of 4.8% as compared
with amount of RMB5,485 million for the last year. The increase was
mainly due to the business growth and economic inflation.

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation for the Year was approximately
RMB4,887 million, representing an increase of 5.7% as compared with
amount of RMB4,623 million for the last year. Depreciation, depletion
and amortization remained fairly stable throughout the Year.

Other selling, general and administrative expenses

Other selling, general and administrative expenses for the Year were
approximately RMBG,770 million, representing an increase of 10.9%
as compared with amount of RMB3,400 million for the last year. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in royalty expenses and the
rest of the increase was in line with the expansion of natural gas
business.

Interest expenses

Interest expenses for the Year was approximately RMB899 million,
representing an increase of 14.8% as compared with amount of
RMB783 million for the last year.

Total interest expenses for the Year was approximately RMB968
million, representing a decrease of 7.5% as compared with amount
of RMB1,046 million for the last year. The decrease was mainly due
to the improved weighted average interest rate for borrowings for the
Year. The amount of RMB69 million interest expenses was capitalised
under construction-in-progress, representing a decrease of 73.8% as
compared with amount of RMB263 million for the last year.
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Share of profits less losses of associates

Share of profits less losses of associates for the Year was approximately
RMB525 million, representing a decrease of 39.9%, as compared
with amount of RMB874 million for the last year. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in the shared operating result from CNPC-
Aktobemunaigas Joint Stock Company (“Aktobe”), which incurred
more exchange losses during the Year. And the rest of the decrease
was due to the increase in operating cost of the associates during
the Year.

Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of total assets of the Group
was approximately RMB138,892 million, representing an increase of
RMB6,310 million or 4.8% as compared with RMB132,582 million as
at 31 December 2021.

The gearing ratio of the Group was 24.26% as at 31 December 2022
compared with 24.92% as at 31 December 2021, representing a
decrease of 0.66%. It is computed by dividing the sum of interest-
bearing borrowings and lease liabilities of RMB25,851 million (2021:
RMB25,177 million) by the sum of total equity, interest-bearing
borrowings and lease liabilities of RMB106,553 million (2021:
RMB101,038 million).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEIWED T

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has total borrowings of RMB25,081
million which will be repayable as follows:

R2022F12A31H » AEB ZBEEARK

25,081 A BRI MEE

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’million RMB’million

AR¥BBET AR¥BET

(Note 30) (Note 30)

(Ft=E30) (Pf3E30)

Within one year N 5,287 5,854
Between one to two years —EWE 2,906 3,917
Between two to five years MERSF 9,591 7,586
After five years AF L 7,297 7,108
25,081 24,465

The functional currency of the Company and most of its subsidiaries is
RMB. As such, the Group is exposed to exchange rate risks arisen from
borrowings denominated in other currencies raised by the Company
or its subsidiaries. The Group will incur exchange gain/loss from
such foreign currency borrowings when RMB appreciates/depreciates
against other currencies. The details of the Group’s financial risk
factors (including foreign exchange rate risk) are summarised under
Note 4.1 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Other
financial risk factors are summarised in Note 4.2 and Note 4.3 in the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, certain property, plant and equipment of
the Group amounting to RMB958 million (2021: RMB1,025 million)
were pledged to banks for loan facilities granted to the Group.

Material acquisitions and disposal

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals during
the Year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company completed
the disposal of the Company’s 60% equity interest in Beijing Pipeline
and 75% equity interest in Dalian LNG to PipeChina at an adjusted
amount of RMB38,462 million, based on the Equity Transfer Agreement
entered on 22 December 2020 between the Company and PipeChina.

As at 31 December 2021, each of Beijing Pipeline, which used to
be reported under the Group’s “Natural Gas Pipeline” segment, and
Dalian LNG, which used to be reported under the Group’s “LNG
Processing and Terminal” segment, represented a separate major line
of the Group’s business. Consequently, Beijing Pipeline and Dalian
LNG has been presented as discontinued operations.

Material Investments

Material investments of the Group are its investments in associates
and in joint ventures.

There is no single material associate or joint venture which significantly
affects the results and/or net assets of the Group. Details of the Group’s
investments in associates and joint venture are in Note 17 and Note
18 respectively in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Employee

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 30,916
employees globally, excluding the employees under entrustment
contracts (2021: 32,136 employees). Remuneration package and
benefits were determined in accordance with market terms, industry
practice as well as the duties, performance, qualifications and
experience of the employees.

Contingent Liability

The Group is a defendant in certain lawsuits as well as the named party
in other proceeding. While the outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuits
or other proceeding cannot be determined at present, management
believes that any resulting liabilities will not have a material adverse
effect on the financial position or financial performance of the Group.

DIVIDEND
Dividend Policy

The dividend policy of the Company allows shareholders to share the
Company’s profits and also enables the Company to retain sufficient
reserves for its future development. Under the circumstances that
the Company makes profits and has no effect on the Group’s normal
business operation, the Company intends to share its profits with
its shareholders in the form of annual dividend, which shall be in a
total distribution amount of not less than 25% of the Group’s annual
consolidated profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company,
on the condition that it shall be subject to the following “Criteria”.

Criteria:

1. When proposing the declaration of any dividends, the Board
shall consider, among other things, the business conditions and
strategies of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
the expected working capital needs and future expansion plans,
surplus, contractual restrictions, actual and expected national
financial conditions, macroeconomic conditions and other factors
as the Board deems relevant.

2.  The dividend rate will vary every year according to the above
criterion and the Company will not assure the distribution of
any specific amounts of dividend at any particular period or the
distribution of dividends at any particular dividend yield.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend (“2022 Final
Dividend”) of RMB25.39 cents per share (2021: RMB20.78 cents per
share) or HK28.71 cents per share calculated at the exchange rate of
RMB1.00: HKD1.1306, being the average of the mean exchange rate
for the conversion of RMB against HKD as announced by the Hong
Kong Association of Banks for the five business days immediately
preceding 28 March 2023 (2021: HK25.22 cents per share calculated
at the exchange rate of RMB1.00: HKD1.2135) to shareholders whose
names appear on the Company’s register of members on 8 June
20283 (Thursday). The payment of the 2022 Final Dividend is subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company to be held at Taishan Room, Level 5, Island Shangri-la
Hotel, Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on
Wednesday, 31 May 2023 at 10:00 a.m. The payment is expected
to be made on 20 July 2023 (Thursday). The proposed 2022 Final
Dividend amounted to a total of approximately RMB2,198 million and
2021 Final Dividend of RMB1,799 million was paid on 14 July 2022.
The payout ratio for 2022 (final dividend per share divided by core
basic earnings per share) was approximately 35.00% (2021: 35.00%).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its code of conduct regarding
dealings in the Company’s securities by Directors.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors, and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

By the order of the Board

Qian Zhijia

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRSE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022
(the “Year”).

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable
efforts to identifying and formulating corporate governance practices
appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (the “Principles”), code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
and certain recommended best practices (the “Recommended Best
Practices”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company is committed to the maintenance of stringent corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to enhancing investor
confidence and the Company’s accountability and transparency. The
Company strives to maintain high corporate governance standard.
The Board of Directors is of the view that the Company has complied
with all the code provisions in the CG Code during the Year, except
the following deviation.

Code provision C.1.6

Pursuant to code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code, the independent
nonexecutive directors should attend general meetings to gain and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr
Sun Patrick, Independent Non-executive Director of the Company,
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 25 May 2022 due to other engagements.

The Company has also put in place certain Recommended Best
Practices as set out in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code, and acknowledges the important role of its Board in providing
effective leadership and direction to Company’s business, and in
ensuring transparency and accountability of Company’s operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company. The Board is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All directors of the Company (the “Directors”) should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
establishment of ESG system, material transactions (in particular
those which may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board fully supports the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to management, it has given clear directions
as to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances where management shall report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company adopted written terms established on division of
functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
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Composition

The Board has the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.
There is a strong element of independence in the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

During the Year, the Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr Fu Bin (Chairman) (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)

Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer)
(Chairman of the Sustainability Committee)

Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Mr Gao Xiangzhong (Chief Financial Officer) (Member of the
Sustainability Committee) (appointed as Chief Financial Officer with
effect from 22 April 2022 and appointed as Executive Director and
a member of Sustainability Committee with effect from 8 July 2022)

Mr. Miao Yong (resigned as Chief Financial Officer and Executive
Director and ceased to be a member of Sustainability Committee
with effect from 22 April 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr Liu Xiao Feng (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Sustainability Committee)

Mr Sun Patrick (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee)

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper (Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Sustainability Committee)
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The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to:

(1) the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors with at least one Independent Non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise;

(2) the appointment of independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict
of interests, serving on Board committees, scrutinising the Company’s
performance and monitoring performance reporting, all Independent
Non-executive Directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Board Diversity

Under Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the nomination committee
(or the board) shall have a policy concerning diversity of board
members, and shall disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in
the Corporate Governance Report. The Board has adopted a Board
Diversity Policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and Nomination Policy
to align the board diversity.
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Nomination Policy
Selection criteria and principles

The Nomination Committee will consider the following factors upon
the assessment of candidates:

(1)  Review on the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board at least once a year, and also make recommendations to
the Board on any proposed changes to align with the Company’s
strategies.

(2)  Fully consider the Board Diversity Policy, individual performance,
individual capability, professionalism, knowledge, experience and
time that can be devoted to the Company, personal credibility,
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange and applicable laws
and regulations etc.; identify candidate(s) with appropriate
qualifications to be member(s) of the Board, and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individual(s)
nominated as director(s).

(8) Make recommendations to the Board on the relevant matters
regarding the director(s) and succession plans for the director(s)
(in particular, the Chairman and chief executive).

Board Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to, skills, knowledge, experience, gender, age,
ethnicity, and educational background etc. Board appointments will
be made on meritocracy, contribution to the Board and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, with due regard to the
benefits of the diversity on the Board.
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Gender Diversity of Workforce

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of employees of the Group
(excluding the employees under entrustment contracts) was 30,916,
and the percentage of male employees and female employees was
67.9% and 32.1% respectively. The Group adheres to an employment
policy of equality and diversity. We oppose any discriminatory, including
gender discrimination, and are committed to gender diversity in our
workforce. Details of the Group’s gender diversity at workforce level
are set out in the Group’s standalone 2022 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision B.2.2 stipulates that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. Each Non-executive Director
has entered into a formal letter of appointment with the Company for a
specific term of three years, subject to the retirement and re-election
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company which provide that every
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy during the Year
shall retire at the next general meeting and every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. Code Provisions B.2.2 has been fully
complied.

Mr Gao Xiangzhong was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 8 July 2022 and will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, has offered himself for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 97 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr Tsang
Yok Sing Jasper will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, has offered himself for
re-election.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 April
2022, Mr Miao Yong resigned as Chief Financial Officer and Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 22 April 2022 due to the
reason of his other work engagements.

35 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022

SEH RIS Tk

R2022F12H31H » AEEE TRAHKGARR
ZHEARETKRIN B30,916 A BEETR
B ITIHLE D B A67.9% K32.1% - RNEE
MR TE LU EMERECR - REME
A B 3E M BB AR R AR IEAR1T R - B
REBRAAKEERNZ T - AEBEET
BEMMURZITENFBERNANEE B LK
FIHC2022F RIE ~ (2 RERME IR o

ZERERES

SRGNB22REBRER(BRAREL
HNER)EHARE 205 =F—K-
BAFATESCERHARBRI —MHEAZ
&  BEEHA=F  HAREBALRMA
ARERBEEE -

REARFAR EFERAFELEMAR
RERMBEECBERESTHARN TERRK
LRE MEBREF(BREHEEEHE)
BAKIB=FRE—K - ARFELHE
SFSPRIMRXB.2.2 °

SE BRI ER2022F7 ASHEZ T AARR
AIMITES @ B2EHBER ARG EEKRE
BAFEXEEm  EEFEERNEEEEE
£ o

RIBARRE 2 ARAMREITHR - BEKTE
BRAABEERRBFRE LRTEE -
MR a8 B8 RBREEREE -

SN ZAR A B B H A20224E4 B 22 H YA & B
¥E - EIEABRRE  2BLAERTIAR
RIS REERAITES + WHL2022%F 4 22
BB o



Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors whenever necessary.

During the Year, each of the Directors has attended various in-house
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Board Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Code Provision C.5.1 stipulates that regular Board meetings should
be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals
for reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance,
and considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of
the Company.

During the Year, four Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings,
one Remuneration Committee meeting, one Nomination Committee
meeting and one sustainability committee meeting were held.

The attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Sustainability Committee during the Year is set
out below:
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings and reasonable notice is generally given
for other Board meetings. For committee meetings, notices are served
in accordance with the required notice period stated in the relevant
terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are normally sent to all Directors/ committee
members at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the Directors abreast of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary will attend Board and committee
meetings, when necessary, to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Minutes are prepared after each meeting and the
final version is signed by the Chairman or the chairman of the relevant
committees (as the case may be) and confirmed by the Board in the
following Board Meeting or by the relevant committee in the following
committee meeting (as the case may be). The confirmed minutes are
kept for future reference and Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also contain
provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established
and set out in writing.

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

During the Year, the positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by different individuals. Mr Fu Bin
was the Chairman of the Board, and Mr Qian Zhijia acted as Chief
Executive Officer throughout the Year. There is no relationship between
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

There are written terms on the general division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning of
the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice.
With the support of the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at Board meetings. The Chief Executive Officer
focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved
and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-
to-day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is
also responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating the
organisational structure, control systems and internal procedures and
processes for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Sustainability Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee are posted on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.
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All Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are the
members of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Throughout the Year, the Audit Committee
included one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Mr Sun Patrick was the Chairman
of the Audit Committee throughout the Year. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
independent auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1. to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by independent auditor before
submission to the Board,;

2. to review the relationship with the independent auditor by
reference to the work performed by the independent auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re- appointment and removal
of the independent auditor; and

3. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings, to review
the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the report on the Company’s internal control and risk
management review and processes and the appointment of the
independent auditor.
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The Company’s annual results for the Year has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the independent auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors. During the Year, Dr Liu Xiao
Feng was the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee throughout
the Year. The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, making
recommendations to the Board for approval of the remuneration
policy and structure and making recommendation or determining
the  remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets annually for reviewing
the remuneration policy and structure and determination of the
annual remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
the senior management and other related matters. The Company
Secretary is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year to
review the remuneration policy and structure of the Company.

The remuneration paid to the senior management by band for the
Year is set out as below:
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Senior Management emolument SREBAECZHE
Year 2022
20224
RMB1,000,001 — RMB2,000,000 AR®1,000,00170 2 AR #2,000,0007C 2
RMB2,000,001 — RMB3,000,000 AR#2 000,00170 2 AR %3,000,00070 -
2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprised four
members, including three independent Non-executive Directors and
the Chairman of the Company. During the Year, Mr Fu Bin was the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1.

to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executives;
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5. to regularly review the time required from a Director to perform
his responsibilities; and

6.  to do such other things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred to it by the Board.

In performing its duties, due regards would be given to the Listing
Rules and the associated guidance.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year to review
Board composition, proposal for Directors’ re-election on retirement,
the appointment of new Director as well as the objectives set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance functions as required under the CG Code:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

— to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board considered the following corporate
governance matters:

adoption of corporate governance functions under the CG Code;

- review the usage of annual caps on continuing connected
transactions of the Group;

- review the compliance with the CG Code; and

- review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk
management systems of the Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

Code Provision C.1.3 stipulates that directors must comply with their
obligations under the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules and, in addition, the Board should establish
written guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the issuer.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors, and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines — Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees in respect of the
dealings in the Company’s securities by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 80 to 87.

During the Year, the fees charged by PricewaterhouseCoopers for the
audit of the Company and its subsidiaries amounted to approximately
RMB15 million (2021: PricewaterhouseCoopers RMB15 million). In
addition, approximately nil (2021: PricewaterhouseCoopers nil) was
charged by PricewaterhouseCoopers for non-audit services. The non-
audit services mainly consist of taxation services, advisory and other
professional services. The fees charged by other auditors of the Group
for audit services and non-audit services during the Year amounted
to approximately RMB8 million and RMB2 million respectively (2021:
RMB10 million and RMB3 million respectively).
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(1)

45

General Meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the Chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Sustainability Committee or, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, are available to
answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Under the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general
meeting will be taken by poll except where the Chairman, in
good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely
to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands. Details of the poll procedures are included in
all notices/circulars to shareholders and will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company subsequent to the close of the shareholders

meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors.
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TEERRE
During the Year, one general meeting was held on 25 May 2022 REE - BER2022F5 4250 817 —
which was the 2022 annual general meeting. The attendance RBRERE - HB2022FRERBF K
records of the Directors to the 2022 general meetings are set g  BEHFE022FMEAS ZHE
out below: FRRBEHEEINNT -
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HEEBXE
Annual
General
Directors Meeting
BEx BRRBEAE
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman) B EE(ERE) 1/1
Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer) BRR AL (TR AEZL) 1/1
Mr Zhou Yuanhong B e 1/1
Mr Gao Xiangzhong (appointed as Executive SRR LE(R2022F7 A8HEZ T4
Director on 8 July 2022) (Chief Financial Officer) #77% % )(BIF#4E;) -
Mr. Miao Yong (resigned on 22 April 2022) BEEE
(202244 522 HEFFHE) =
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHBTESE
Dr Liu Xiao Feng 2EEE L+ 1/1
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE 0/1
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper BERK ST 1/1
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(2) Rights of Shareholders to Convene Special General

47

Meeting

A special general meeting shall be convened on the written
requisition of shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the registration not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company which as at the date of the deposit carries the
voting right at general meetings of the Company deposited at
the registered office of the Company in Bermuda (Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda) and the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong (39/F,
118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong) for the attention of
the Board.

The written requisition shall specify the objects of the special
general meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s). If the Board
does not, within 21 days from the date of deposit of the written
requisition, proceed duly to convene the special general meeting
the requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the special
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which special general meeting may be convened by the
Board, provided that any special general meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the date
of deposit of the written requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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(3)

(4)

()

Shareholders’ Communication

Corporation communications such as interim reports, annual
reports and circulars are sent to the shareholders in a timely
manner and are also available on the website of the Company.
The Company’s website provides the shareholders with the
corporate information, such as principal business activities and
latest development of the Group, as well as the share price and
dividend history of the Company. Also, it provides information
on corporate governance and corporate social responsibilities
of the Group as well as the compositions and functions of the
Board and the committees. For efficient communication with
shareholders and in the interest of environmental protection,
arrangements were made to allow shareholders to elect to
receive corporate communications of the Company by electronic
means through the Company’s website.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone hotline, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send
their enquiries to the Board through these means.

Constitutional Documents

Changes in the Company’s constitutional documents may
only be effected by way of special resolution. During the Year,
there were no changes in any of the Company’s constitutional
documents.

Subsequent to the financial year and as announced in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 March 2023, the Company
proposed to seek the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM for adoption of the New Bye-laws, details of
which will be stated in the circular of the Company dated 21
April 2023.

Investor Relations

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains website at http://www.kunlun.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are posted.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company maintains
sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholders
investment and the Company’s assets. The internal control system of
the Company comprises a well-established organisational structure
and comprehensive policies and standards. The Company also has
an internal audit department, which is responsible for monitoring the
internal governance of the Group and overseeing the risk management
and internal control system of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses annually the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system which covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management of the Company. The Board
acknowledges that such risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. Having
reviewed the assessment report issued by an external advisory firm,
the Board considers that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are effective and adequate.

The Group has been attaching great importance to internal control
and risk management. The Company continued to facilitate the
building of its internal control system, gradually built and improved a
comprehensive risk management system, and effectively promoted
its operation in compliance with the laws and regulations. It actively
pushed forward the integration of risk management and business and
gave full play to the guiding role of risks in its management.
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MAJOR RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL IN 2022

In 2022, the Company focused on high-quality development, with risk
prevention and legal compliance as the goals. By means of process
optimization, effective supervision, and strengthened management
and control of major risks, it took strict control measures for risk
events, conducted a quantitative assessment on investment projects,
prevented and defused maijor risks, screened out special risks, and
built risk prevention, control and supervision systems in an all-round
way. As a result, the Company improved its governance capability
significantly, enhanced the system execution capability continuously,
improved compliance management and various basic management
efforts greatly, and continued to implement the internal control system
effectively. The company was rated as an “outstanding” unit of annual
internal control operation by PetroChina Company Limited for the fifth
consecutive year. Our major risk management and control efforts are
as follows:

1. Market risks

First, the management of purchase and marketing price
differentials was strengthened to enhance the natural gas
terminal sales level. All units were organized to formulate the
non-heating period contango scheme and actively assist the
local price department to release the contango document jointly
with other local gas enterprises. Second, the differentiated
marketing was implemented based on market supply and
demand, seasonal equilibrium characteristics of users’ gas
consumption, resource attribute, resource procurement costs,
customer price affordability and other factors. According to
market rules, resources were allocated effectively to adjust the
customer development direction at any time and realize the
natural gas product segmentation step by step. Third, efforts
were made to expand the procurement channels of imported
resources, strengthen the business information research and
analysis, research and formulate the Company’s scientific
business strategies, monitor international and domestic LPG
resources and other business information regularly, predict
market demands in a scientific manner, and develop the LPG
purchase and sales business according to annual and monthly
plans. The company’s market risks were controlled effectively
in 2022.
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Health, safety and environmental protection risks

First, the supervision function was strengthened continuously,
making the security inspection more effective. Efforts were made
to adopt the three production safety rectification measures in an
all-round way, take the 100-day fight action, implement 15 hard
measures, improve dual prevention mechanisms, and further
consolidate the responsibilities for safety and environmental
protection. The door-to-door security inspection was conducted
effectively to publicize the safe gas use among users, increasing
the door-to-door security inspection rate for non-resident users
and residents in old residential communities up to 100%. All the
commercial users were installed with combustible gas alarms and
cut-off devices. Second, daily training and problem rectification
were conducted to improve the quality of security inspection
continuously. Security inspection systems and methods, accident
cases and security inspection experiences were publicized and
shared in multiple ways to improve the capability of finding
hidden danger in daily security inspections. Third, the digita
empowerment of risk management and control was improved
greatly. The basic data of 120,000km pipelines in service were
all input into the production management system whose semi-
quantitative risk assessment function was used to identify and
grade the gas pipe network risks and pay attention to the
comprehensive management and control of “two high and one
closed” pipeline leakage risks, in a bid to control the nationwide
pipe network by one system. Fourth, the pipeline protection
publicity was strengthened, with strict daily inspections and
patrols. Attention was paid to the publicity work at important
risk points with frequent cross construction of third parties
and high consequence areas. The production management
system and the patrol line GIS system were used effectively
to strengthen the daily pipeline maintenance supervision and
inspection efforts. In 2022, the Company’s health, safety and
environmental protection risks were under control as a whole.
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Strategic partner risk

Firstly, the Company further improved the selection criteria
of cooperative shareholders. The Company strengthened
the investigation of the financial status, capital status and
creditworthiness of our partners, summarized and analyzed the
causes of risks related to risk matters, continuously improved
the selection criteria for cooperative shareholders, and revised
its Management Measures for the Selection of Cooperative
Shareholders to effectively implement risk prevention and control
and compliance control requirements. Secondly, the Company
protected the rights of capital contributors and enhanced the
abilities of capital creation and governance. The Company
enhanced the construction of the Board of Directors of joint
ventures and scientifically evaluated the operation of the Board
of Directors of pilot enterprises. The Company explored the
establishment of an assessment and evaluation mechanism
for external directors, and strengthened the exercise of power
and performance by its designated persons. The Company
strengthened the management of the exercise of power by
the participating companies, implemented the classification
management of the participating companies, and beefed up
the system of exercising power and performing duties, regular
reporting and timely reporting of major matters by the persons
designated to the participating companies. Thirdly, the Company
formed a regular communication mechanism with shareholders to
jointly promote the long-term development of the joint ventures.
The Company’s strategic partner risk was under controlled
overall in 2022.

Legal risk

Firstly, the Company carried out the “Year of Compliance
Management and Enhancement” and special governance actions
to identify and rectify problems to a high standard, promote
the work in terms of system, management, risk prevention
and problem rectification, and met the goal of rectifying all
compliance problems on schedule. Secondly, the Company
issued a series of compliance management documents for the
advancement of compliance management system. The Company
identified compliance risk points, formulated 511 preventive
and control measures, made and issued a list of compliance
risks; revised its Compliance Management Measures, made and
issued a checklist for legal compliance review, and developed
workflow to plug management leaks in all aspects. Thirdly, the
Company actively improved legal awareness. The affiliated units
organized 131 legal training courses this year, and independently
prepared test questions to test the compliance knowledge of
all employees, with more than 21,000 people answering the
questions. The Company’s legal risk was under effective control
in 2022.
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Investment risk

Firstly, the Company continued to optimize the investment
management system. The Company completed the revision of
its Investment Management Measures and fully put them in place.
Secondly, the Company raised the quality of investment control.
The Company adhered to the concept of rigorous investment,
accurate investment and effective investment and the principle of
planning-led quantity and efficiency, benefit first with protective
and suppressive measures, and continuously improved the
annual investment plan. The Company promoted the preliminary
work of the key branch project actively and orderly, deepened
the market efficiency demonstration, and strictly control project
quality from the source. Thirdly, the Company enhanced the
authorization management process guidance. The Company
performed strict project review and economic evaluation
demonstration; enhanced the investment process guidance of
affiliated enterprises, carried out serious system implementation
and strict project review and demonstration, deepened project
record review, strictly controlled fund allocation, and made
every effort to ensure standardized management and controlled
risk. Fourthly, the Company implemented strict investment
management supervision and assessment. The Company
implemented further strict synergy evaluation and assessment of
investment projects and incorporated them into its performance
assessment; strengthened the post-evaluation of authorization
and approval to play the role of closed-loop post-evaluation of
construction projects and equity investment projects, deepen the
post-evaluation of typical projects, and ensure that the affiliated
units carry out relevant work within the scope of authorization
and in compliance with the law. The Company’s control over
investment risk was continuously improved in 2022.
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Engineering project management risk

Firstly, the Company took design as the source to promote
the whole life cycle management of projects and integrate the
requirements of high-quality development into the whole process
management of engineering construction. The Company focused
on reviewing whether the scope, content and depth of designs
comply with the prevailing regulations on the preparation of
construction engineering or industry design documents; whether
design documents comply with the prevailing relevant construction
standards, codes and mandatory standards; whether design
schemes are reasonable, whether process flows and supporting
facilities are advanced and reliable, and whether there are any
major defects, etc., and proposed technical enhancement
measures and management enhancement measures for the
high-quality development of projects. Secondly, the Company
strengthened the project organization and leadership to ensure
that the annual key construction projects were efficient, high-
quality, safe and completed and put into operation, depending
on different project types and project scale with construction
projects as the core. Thirdly, the Company enhanced the control
of the whole life cycle of engineering, effectively exerted the
synergy of relevant business departments, provided fixed-point
guidance and special training, and raised the awareness of
legal compliance management. Fourthly, the Company strictly
managed the qualification of contractors and personnel,
stringently strengthened the management of use of contractors
and standardized performance behaviors to effectively guarantee
the quality of works.

In respond to the annual major risks identified in the assessment,
the Company and collective management departments will set
control objectives, clarify control responsibilities, identify key
business areas and important management links, and refine
control measures, in combination with key work arrangements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review of the results of each business segment of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), major risks
and uncertainties facing the Group’s business operations, and the
Group’s business prospects are set out in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 13 to 20 of this annual report, the discussion thereof forms
part of this Directors’ Report.

(1) Business Strategy

In 2023, as the international gas market sees eased tension
between supply and demand and declining prices and China’s
economy picks up faster with gas demand recovering in industry,
power generation, transport, construction and other areas, gas
consumption will reach a growth rate of more than 6%. The
Chinese government proactively and steadily advances carbon
peaking and carbon neutrality, and facilitates the building of a
new-type energy system, boosting the development of the gas
industry and creating more room for the integration between gas
and other new energies. The Group will firmly grasp the new
opportunities brought by low-carbon transformation by deploying
new energy based on its own advantages and expanding new
business models that focus on customer needs in order to create
a new model of digital governance and create a new stage for
high-quality growth.
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(2) Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s business are mainly operated by its subsidiaries in
the PRC and overseas, which in their businesses should abide
by the relevant laws and regulations, including those relating to
gas operation and service, gas facilities protection, prevention
and handling of gas safety accidents, price determination
regime of natural gas, environmental protection, labour security,
exploration, production and sales of crude oil. The Group has
also obtained the requisite business licenses, qualifications,
approvals and permits which are necessary for conducting its
operations in the PRC and overseas.

During the Year, to the best of the knowledge and information
of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the Group has
complied with the relevant laws, regulations and other applicable
requirements that have a significant impact on the Group and
there have not been any illegal or non-compliant acts which
would materially impact the Group’s normal and continuing
operations.

(2)
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(3) Key relationships with stakeholders

57

The Group recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to its healthy growth and strives to maintain
effective communication with its stakeholders, including its
shareholders, investors, employees, customers and suppliers.
This has facilitated the Group’s sustainable development in
various aspects, including its business operation, environmental
protection and work environment.

Corporate communications are provided to the shareholders of
the Company in a timely manner. The Directors participated in
the general meetings held during the Year to enable effective
communication with the shareholders. The Company also
continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the development of the Company.

The Group adheres to the principle of fairness in recruitment
and treatment of its employees, and has established sound
occupational health and safety policies to create a desirable
work environment for its employees. Remuneration package and
benefits of the employees are determined in accordance with
market terms, industry practice as well as duties, performance,
qualification and experience of the employees.

The Group adopts a market-oriented approach, closely monitors
the demand for its products and coordinate its production,
transmission and marketing activities with an aim to provide
greater value to its customers. The Group has established long-
term relationship with its major customers, including PetroChina
Company Limited (“PetroChina”) and other independent third-
party customers which are primarily industrial users of the
Group’s gas products. The ageing analysis and further details
of the Group’s accounts receivable are set out in Note 24 in
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Group
did not rely on any major customer during the Year, and will
continue to adopt multiple measures to develop users and
expand marketing channels.

At the same time, the Group adopts scientific approach in
managing its supply chain and controlling costs of raw materials.
The Group has also received strong support from its largest
supplier, PetroChina, in maintaining stable supply for its
midstream and downstream natural gas business. The Group has
maintained a good relationship, and did not have any significant
disputes, with its major customers and suppliers during the Year.
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The Group has upheld its mission of “Low-Carbon Economy
Green Development” in its long-term business strategy. It
has placed a great emphasis on environmental protection by
promoting energy conservation and emission reduction with
a view to contributing to the sustainable development of the
environment and maintaining long-term growth of the Group.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are the sales
of natural gas, sales of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) and liquefied
natural gas (“LNG”) processing and terminal business in the PRC and
the exploration and production of crude oil and natural gas in the PRC,
the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Sultanate of Oman, the Republic of
Peru and the Kingdom of Thailand.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 88 and 89.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend (“2022 Final
Dividend”) of RMB25.39 cents per share (2021: RMB20.78 cents per
share) or HK28.71 cents per share calculated at the exchange rate of
RMB1.00: HKD1.13086, being the average of the mean exchange rate
for the conversion of RMB against HKD as announced by the Hong
Kong Association of Banks for the five business days immediately
preceding 28 March 2023 (2021: HK25.22 cents per share calculated
at the exchange rate of RMB1.00: HKD1.2135) to shareholders
whose names appear on the Company’s register of members (the
“Shareholders Register”) on 8 June 2023 (Thursday). The payment of
the 2022 Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at Taishan
Room, Level 5, Island Shangri-la Hotel, Pacific Place, Supreme Court
Road, Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 31 May 2023 at 10:00
a.m. (the “2023 AGM”). The payment is expected to be made on 20
July 2023 (Thursday). The proposed 2022 Final Dividend amounted
to a total of approximately RMB2,198 million and 2021 Final Dividend
of RMB1,799 million was paid on 14 July 2022. The payout ratio for
2022 (final dividend per share divided by core basic earnings per
share) was approximately 35.00% (2021: 35.00%).

The proposed 2022 Final Dividend will be payable in cash to each
shareholder in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) unless an election is made
to receive the same in Renminbi (“RMB”).
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Shareholders will be given the option to elect to receive all (but not
part, save in the case of HKSCC Nominees Limited, which may elect
to receive part of its entitlement in RMB) of the 2022 Final Dividend in
RMB. If shareholders elect to receive all (but not part) of the 2022 Final
Dividend in RMB, shareholders should complete a dividend currency
election form, which is expected to be despatched to shareholders
in mid-June 2023 as soon as practicable after the record date of 8
June 2023 (Thursday) to determine shareholders’ entitliement to the
proposed 2022 Final Dividend.

If an election is made by a shareholder to receive the 2022 Final
Dividend in RMB in respect of all (but not part) of that shareholder’s
entitlement, the RMB dividend will be paid by cheques which are
expected to be posted to the relevant shareholders by ordinary post
on 20 July 2023 (Thursday) at the shareholders’ own risk.

Shareholders who are minded to elect to receive the 2022 Final
Dividend in RMB should note that (i) they should ensure that they
have an appropriate bank account to which the RMB cheques for the
2022 Final Dividend can be presented for payment; and (ii) there is
no assurance that the RMB cheques can be cleared without handling
charges or delay in Hong Kong or that the RMB cheques will be
honoured for payment upon presentation outside Hong Kong.

If any beneficial owners of shares of the Company which are registered
in the name of a nominee (e.g. HKSCC Nominees Limited), trustee
or registered holder in any other capacity elect to receive all (but not
part) of the 2022 Final Dividend in RMB, they should make appropriate
arrangements with such nominees, trustees or registered holders in
order to effect the receipt of the 2022 Final Dividend in RMB. The
Company shall not be responsible for any costs, taxes or duties
associated therewith or arising therefrom and such costs will be borne
solely by the beneficial owners of such shares of the Company. If no
such arrangements are in place, such beneficial owners of shares of the
Company (despite having elected to receive the 2022 Final Dividend
in RMB) shall receive the 2022 Final Dividend in HKD.

If shareholders wish to receive the 2022 Final Dividend in HKD in the
usual way, no additional action is required.
Shareholders should seek professional advice with their own tax

advisors regarding any possible tax implications of the proposed
dividend payment.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2023 AGM will be held on 31 May 2023 (Wednesday). The Notice
of the 2023 AGM, which constitutes part of the circular to shareholders,
will be sent to the shareholders together with the 2022 Annual Report.
The Notice of the 2023 AGM and the proxy form will also be available
on the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

CLOSURE OF SHAREHOLDERS REGISTER

For the purposes of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend and
vote at the 2023 AGM, and entitlement to the 2022 Final Dividend,
the Shareholders Register will be closed. Details of such closures are
set out below:

(i)

For determining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM:

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration

4:30 p.m. on 24 May 2023
Wednesday)

Closure of Shareholders
Register

from 25 May 2023 (Thursday)
to 31 May 2023 (Wednesday)
(both dates inclusive)

Record date 31 May 2023 (Wednesday)

For determining entitlement to the 2022 Final Dividend:

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration

4:30 p.m. on 6 June 2023
(Tuesday)

from 7 June 2023
(Wednesday) to 8 June 2023
(Thursday)

(both dates inclusive)

Closure of Shareholders
Register

Record date 8 June 2023 (Thursday)
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During the above closure periods, no transfer of shares will be
registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM, and
to qualify for the 2022 Final Dividend, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s Branch Registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no later than the aforementioned latest
time.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity on pages 92 and 93, and Note 28 in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in Note 27 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

61 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022

P ERBEAR I RERNDBEERLRF
B RNAEEBLF2023FRRBFERE
VTREEREUARGEREZ2022F K
BB - ARZNBFRSERBRBREZR
RAER L &EBRAT - REARRNE
BZBMBPERIREEMEREARA
A MU AEBERBICRERSRF 017
2 UIERMHBFELTE -

T BHE

AEEBEREMBFEZREREELR
EMEHNFSR -

fi#fm
AEERARAREFENHE 2 BHIER

DHERFERMIBE R A EE BB R LA
B MR TE < B 5E28 -

Ig 7

RRBRNFERAZRALEEDFBHRZE M
TR o < M 5E27



DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were as follows:
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AR DIk E

MR20224F 2021412 A31H » AQ T A
DIRFEEBELT ¢

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEER AREBET

Contributed surplus BERAR 109 109
Retained earnings BIERT 10,840 11,442
10,949 11,551

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year are:

Executive Directors:

Mr Fu Bin (Chairman)

Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Mr Gao Xiangzhong (Chief Financial Officer) (appointed as Executive
Director on 8 July 2022)

Mr. Miao Yong (resigned on 22 April 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Mr Sun Patrick

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 April
2022, Mr Miao Yong resigned as Chief Financial Officer and Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 22 April 2022 due to the
reason of his other work engagements.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

During the Year, the Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.
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BRIEF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman)

Aged 58, Mr Fu was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 19 November 2020, and served as the Chairman of the
Board from 19 November 2020.

Mr Fu is currently executive director of PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company (- EI 7 B A B4 2 7).

Mr Fu, being a senior economist, obtained a bachelor's degree in
engineering and a master’s degree in engineering from China University
of Petroleum, East China, and China University of Petroleum, Beijing,
respectively, and completed the EMBA course at the University of
Houston.

Mr Fu has over 30 years of experience in the Chinese petroleum
and gas industry. Since 1992, Mr Fu had worked in China National
Petroleum Corporation Marketing Company (1 Bl 38 X A T 42 A &) $4
£ /A 7)), China National Petroleum Marketing Corporation (7 B3/
$HEE 422 7)) and the Refining and Marketing Company of PetroChina
Company Limited (“PetroChina”) (7 B i A S8 %15 B IR A 7] /R )\ £
HE DA F]). Mr Fu became executive vice president and president
of China Marine Bunker (PetroChina) Co., Ltd. (FEMAAMEI BR &
fE2 7)) in November 2003 and July 2007 respectively. He became
vice president of PetroChina Marketing Company (B A H 4% 5 A
A]) in November 2009, president of PetroChina Sichuan Marketing
Company (B A fmPY)I$8%E 5572 B]) as well as president of Sichuan
Petroleum Corporation (79114 AR E A 7)) in October 2014, and
president of PetroChina Marketing Company in April 2018. He became
executive director of PetroChina Natural Gas Marketing Company,
president of PetroChina Natural Gas and Pipelines Company, and
executive director and president of China Petroleum Hong Kong
(Holding) Limited in October 2020.
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Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 57, Mr Qian was appointed as an Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 19 November 2020.

Mr Qian is currently president of PetroChina Natural Gas Marketing
Company (FEIGARAREED R F]).

Mr Qian, being a senior engineer, obtained a bachelor’s degree in
engineering and a doctorate degree in engineering from Southwest
Petroleum University, and completed the EMBA course at the University
of Houston.

Mr Qian has over 30 years of experience in the Chinese petroleum
and gas industry and had worked in Sichuan Petroleum Administration
Bureau (P9)11 5l & 12 /B) and PetroChina Southwest Oil and Gas Field
Company (B A A MR A D 2 7)) since July 1989. He became
vice president of PetroChina Southwest Oil and Gas Field Company
in December 2009, as well as vice president of PetroChina Natural
Gas Southwest Marketing Company (Bl A M XA THEFRE DA
A]) in December 2016 concurrently. In May 2017, Mr Qian became
executive vice president of PetroChina Southwest Oil and Gas Field
Company and vice president of PetroChina Natural Gas Southwest
Marketing Company. In July 2018, Mr Qian became president of
PetroChina Natural Gas Southwest Marketing Company and vice
president of PetroChina Southwest Oil and Gas Field Company. In
January 2019, Mr Qian became vice president of the Company and
vice president of PetroChina Natural Gas Marketing Company. In
October 2020, Mr Qian became president of PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company.

Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Aged 55, Mr Zhou was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 12 January 2018.

Mr Zhou is a Senior Accountant, now appointed as the Vice President
of the Finance & Assets Department of China National Petroleum
Corporation and a Director of CNPC Capital Company Limited. With
a working experience of more than 30 years in the petroleum and
natural gas industry, Mr Zhou has long been engaged in financial
management and capital operation in PetroChina and possesses
extensive knowledge and experience in financial management and
capital operation.

Mr Zhou successively obtained a bachelor’s degree from Xi’an Shiyou

Institute and a master’s degree from the University of New South
Wales, Australia.
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Mr. Gao Xiangzhong (Chief Financial Officer)

Aged 57, Mr Gao was appointed as a Chief Financial Officer of the
Company on 22 April 2022 and an Executive Director of the Company
on 8 July 2022.

Mr. Gao is a senior accountant and has obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree from Peking University and a Master of Business Administration
degree from University of Science and Technology Beijing.

Mr. Gao has over 30 years of working experience in the oil and
gas industry. He has been engaged in auditing and financial
management for many years, and has extensive professional
knowledge and practical experience in financial management.
He has served successively in Sinopec Shengli Petroleum
Administration Bureau (FEIG{LEFAREIER) and PetroChina
Audit Center (FREIA M) since 1987, has been the deputy
chief auditor of PetroChina Audit Center since November 2015, has
been the chief accountant of PetroChina Natural Gas Marketing
(Western) Company (1 Bl Al KA & 8 & 79 2 5 2 7]) since
December 2016, has been the chief accountant of PetroChina
Transportation Co., Ltd. (F B A MREEH FRE A7) since October
2020, and has been the chief accountant of PetroChina Natural
Gas Marketing Company (FFEIAHMRARIEE D2 7)) since March
2022.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Aged 60, Dr Liu was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 16 April 2004.

Dr Liu has more than 23 years of experience in corporate finance and
has worked in various international financial institutions since 1993,
including N.M. Rothschild & Sons, NM Rothschild & Sons (Hong
Kong) Limited, JP Morgan Chase, DBS Asia Capital Limited, China
Resources Capital Holdings Company Limited. He was an independent
non-executive director of Haier Electronics Group Company Limited
(stock code: 1169) since June 2007 up to June 2014, an independent
non-executive director of Hisense Home Appliances Group Company
Limited (stock code: 921) since September 2017 up to August 2018, an
independent non-executive director of Honghua Group Limited (stock
code: 196) since January 2008 to November 2021, an independent
non-executive director of Cinda International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 111) since July 2016, the independent non-executive director of
Sunfonda Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1771) since May 2017
and the independent non-executive director of AAG Energy Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2686) since August 2018, the issued shares of all
of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). He is also currently an independent director of UBS
Securities Co., Ltd. Dr Liu obtained a master’s degree and a Ph.D. from
the Faculty of Economics, University of Cambridge in 1988 and 1994
respectively, a Master of Science degree in Development Studies from
the University of Bath, England, in 1987, and a Bachelor of Economics
degree from Southwest University of Finance and Economics, China
(previously known as Sichuan Institute of Finance and Economics,
China) in 1983.
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Mr Sun Patrick

Aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company on 18 February 2016.

Mr Sun is currently an independent non-executive director of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (stock code: 0460), Ferretti S.p.A.
(stock code: 9638) and AustAsia Group Ltd. (stock code 2425), all of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Sun was an independent non-executive director of China Railway
Signal & Communication Corporation Limited (2015-2018), Trinity
Limited (2008-2020), China NT Pharma Group Co., Ltd. (2010-2019),
all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong, and Chairman of
the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies (2013-2015). He was
also an independent non-executive director of CRRC Corporation
Limited (2015-2021) and China Railway Construction Corporation
Limited, (2014-2021) both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Before that, he was the senior
country officer and head of investment banking for Hong Kong of
JP Morgan Chase, group executive director and head of investment
banking for Greater China at Jardine Fleming Holdings Limited. He
was a member of the Takeovers & Mergers Panel and the Takeovers
Appeal Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission, deputy
convenor of the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange and a
council member of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Sun graduated from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania, the United States, with a Bachelor of Science degree in
Economics in 1981. Mr. Sun also completed the Stanford Executive
Program of Stanford Business School, the United States, in 2000. Mr.
Sun is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the United Kingdom, and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

Aged 75, Mr Tsang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 August 2019.

Mr. Tsang is currently an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (stock code:
3613), and DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 0620) both are listed on the Stock Exchange, an honorary
professor at the Chinese University of Hong Kong, convenor of Hong
Kong Vision Research Programme (&/8FE=5T4l), vice chairman of
Hong Kong Policy Research Institute Limited and an advisor of the
Democratic Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong.
Mr. Tsang also dedicates himself to education in Hong Kong. Mr.
Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree and certificate in education
from the University of Hong Kong in 1968 and 1981, respectively. He
then obtained a master’s degree in education from the University of
Hong Kong in 1983. He is currently a manager of Pui Kiu Primary
School and supervisor of Pui Kiu Middle School and Pui Kiu College.

From 1992 to 2003, Mr. Tsang was the chairman of the Democratic
Alliance for the Betterment of Hong Kong (R E 288 8). From 1993
to 2013, Mr. Tsang was a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. From 1996 to
2000, he served as a member of the Standing Committee on Language
Education and Research. From 1996 to 2005, he was a member of
the Council of the Open University of Hong Kong. From 1997 to 1998,
he was a member of the Provisional Legislative Council of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”). From 1998 to 2016, he
was a member of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR. From 2002 to
2008, he was a member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR. From
2008 to 2016, he was the president of the 4th and the 5th Legislative
Council of the HKSAR. In addition, from 2001 to 2007, he was a
non-executive Director of the Securities and Futures Commission.
From 2002 to 2008, he was a member of the Disaster Relief Fund
Advisory Committee. From 2003 to 2008, he was a member of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption Complaints Committee.
From 2005 to 2008, he was a member of the Executive Committee
of the Commission on Strategic Development and a board member
of the Airport Authority. From 2017 to 2018, he served as a member
of the Task Force on Land Supply.
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Company Secretary
Mr Xie Mao (Company Secretary)

Aged 52, Mr Xie was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company
on 17 December 2020.

Mr Xie is a senior economist and holds a Master of Business
Administration from Zhejiang University and served as a visiting fellow
at Stanford University. Mr Xie has been appointed as the secretary
to the Board since May 2016 and is affiliated person of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr Xie has 30 years of work
experience in the petroleum and natural gas industry and has worked
in several oil and gas companies of PetroChina.

Chief Financial Officer
Mr Gao Xiangzhong

Aged 57, Mr Gao was appointed as an Chief Financial Officer of the
Company on 22 April 2022 and Executive Director of the Company
on 8 July 2022. Mr Gao’s biography is set out on page 66.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or any entity connected with a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Commencement
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which any such Director and chief executive of the
Company is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or which (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by the Company; or
which (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”),
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries and its holding
companies a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and
chief executives of the Company (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
associated corporations.

SHARE OPTIONS

During the Period, the Company does not have any outstanding share
options granted to the directors and employees of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO, showed that the Company
has been notified of the following interests, being 5% or more of
the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in addition
to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company.
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AR

CARREEBATNINEERREG AR

NEIEBITIRAE%S A E 2w - ZE5RR
RELXRARBAEZTRERITRABMEK
BENIN L

Number of shares Percentage

R EE of issued

Direct Indirect shares

interest interest HERTRS

Name = BHiEER EiEER ZEDL

PetroChina Hong Kong Ltd. PEBEEERAR 4,708,302,133 (L) = 54.38%
(“PetroChina Hong Kong”)!" (TPEREEDO 4,708,302,133(#F)

PetroChina Company Limited HEABRARRMD - 4,708,302,133 (L) 54.38%

(“PetroChina”)" ERAT 4,708,302,133(4F)
(THhERMH])
Fairy King Investments Ltd.? Fairy King Investments Ltd.? 277,432,000 (L) - 3.20%
277,432,000(4F)
CNPC International Ltd. CNPC International Ltd. - 277,432,000 (L) 3.20%
(“CNPCI”)@ (TCNPCI )@ 277,432,000(4F)
China National Oil and Gas HE AR ARARER = 277,432,000 (L) 3.20%
Exploration and Development ki NG] 277,432,000(#F)
Corporation (“CNODC")? (TcNoDC )@
China National Petroleum FEAHRAREE A - 4,985,734,133 (L) 57.58%
Corporation (“CNPC”)@ (BB RER])M 4,985,734,133(4F)
Notes: 3T
1) PetroChina Hong Kong is wholly owned by PetroChina, which in turn is owned (1) FERBEERTRAREERE H MABEAME
as to 80.54% by CNPC. Accordingly, CNPC is deemed to have interest in the R EAHEREAS0.54%%E - At - FEA
4,708,302,133 (L) shares held by PetroChina Hong Kong. MEBEER RNR A RE BT .24,708,302,133
()RR PR R -
(2 Based on the Disclosure of Interests Online (DION) System of the Stock Exchange, — (2)  IRIRH 2 F 2 4% £ # 55 4% %2 (DION) 2 4% - Fairy

Fairy King Investments Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CNPCI, which in turn
is wholly owned by CNODC, which is in turn owned as to 100.00% by CNPC.
Accordingly, CNPC is deemed to have interest in the 277,432,000 (L) shares
held by Fairy King Investments Ltd.

King Investments Ltd. JYCNPClz 2 &M E R &) -
MCNPCI HCNODCZ&#E - BB AHER
# B CNODC 2 100.00%# =  F Lt - FEAH
E @R A RFairy King Investments Ltd.Ffi 2
277,432,000(4F ) BRAR 1D R A #Ewm o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any person
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had
any interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2022, the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company were not aware of any person (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who was, directly or indirectly, interested
in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other members of the Group, or any options in respect of such capital.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December 2022 and there
had been no other exercise of convertible securities, options, warrants
or similar rights during the Year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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EEEHEE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS FAEXR 5
Continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which FtHBRIBE T2 ERERS » BIRELT
are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the  #RBIE14AZEITII T IREE ¢
Listing Rules, are as follows.
Amount
incurred for Annual cap
Nature of transactions Details 2022 for 2022
2022%F 20224
XEHE =15 EEXZE®E FELR
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBRET ARKBAET
(i) Provision of products by the CNPC  As disclosed in Company’s 109,667 117,757
Group to the Group announcement dated
PomEEmAEERHER 11 September 2020 and
circular dated 5 October 2020
RARR BEA2020F9 11 B ZRE
K2020F10 A5 2 @K+ # &
(i) Provision of services by the CNPC As disclosed in Company’s 4,580 15,237
Group to the Group announcement dated
FoREER A S B RHRS 11 September 2020 and
circular dated 5 October 2020
RAAF BB A202059 811 AZ A%
K2020F10 A58 2B K K TE
(i) Provision of products by the Group  As disclosed in Company’s 4,572 9,494
to the CNPC Group announcement dated
AEERFHEBRREED 11 September 2020 and
circular dated 5 October 2020
RAREIAHA202069A11B 2 A%
% 2020F10 A58 ZBHPHE
(iv)  Provision of services by the Group As disclosed in Company’s 4,478 19,385

to the CNPC Group
AEERPHEERMRS

announcement dated

11 September 2020 and

circular dated 5 October 2020
RARAB B A2020F9A11HZRE

K2020F10 A5 H 2 BEHF IR EE

EREREARAT B FEERE
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company. The
Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial
terms or better; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the independent auditor of the Company to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
independent auditor of the Company has issued its letter containing
its following findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 190 to 194 of
the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Nothing has come to the independent auditor’s attention that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not received the approval of the Company’s Board of
Directors;

(i) are not in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company
if the transactions involve provision of goods or services by the
Group;

(i)  have not been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcement
dated 11 September 2020 and circular dated 5 October 2020
with respect to the aggregated amount of each transaction
involved.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

75 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022

B ERERHERARRBEYLIFNITE
ERE - BUFNTEFHER - LHKEH
BRXBT@RAEEZ AR REFRBEBIE
B (b)) R —RE RN EE G  ROR
BRE AR S 2 E@WHIERETL - LB
RFRERFAERRABRR 2 ERHNE -

RIE ETRAIE14A561K - EFGERER
REVBYAZEE - REFEZIEREERE
30005k ¥ 18 1 f1 15 B FHETT R AZ K EBI A
SMNIZRERIE I R2EBEGFHIARRMZ
B AAFE 7405 AN EE LR RIAT 55
BRIER S BN Kk | AR B 2 K 4ERE
BRETHRE - ARBBUZBMCDRE
ETHRRIE14A561GEF R E R - BEHEHA
Hp REE R FHME190E 194 BIRE 2 758
BER 52 AT ERNAER

BB P AEE WERERERS

() AREARREZFGZHE:

(i) RETFARAZEEBBRRMWERZH R
AEERHE MRS

(i) RBREBERS 2 HHGETET &

(v) BEEZERXSz@EmmME @ Bap
AEHEA2020F9 A11BZ A& &
2020F10HSH 2 B FE 2 LR

RRAE MBI EAZBRANE Rz BIAS -



The Company has confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Group has entered into certain entrustment management contracts
in relation to the management and operation of the Leng Jiapu Contract
and PetroChina Beijing Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services attributable to major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s 78%
largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s 84%

five largest suppliers

Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or 5%
rendering of services attributable to the Group’s
largest customer

Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or 8%
rendering of services attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers

PetroChina, a listed subsidiary of CNPC, is the Group’s largest supplier
and customer.

Save for the above, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the close directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) has
an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to RMB1,541,488.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and the employees of the Company
are reviewed and recommended by the Remuneration Committee to
the Board, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the knowledge
of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of
more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares during the Year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, as at 28 March 2023, none of the Directors
and their respective associates had any interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the businesses of the Group (as would
be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules if
each of them were a controlling shareholder).
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Name of Director

B4

Name of company

DAER

Nature of interest

S
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Nature of competing business

BEERME

Fu Bin
38

Qian Zhijia
BAR

Zhou Yuanhong

iz

Gao Xiangzhong
BT

PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company
hEAARARBEED A

PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company
PRAEARARHED R A

CNPC
TEAHEE

PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company
REEHRARBEED AT

Executive Director

WITES

President
Bigrs

Marketing of natural gas
RARMIGIER

Marketing of natural gas
RARMIGIEE

Vice President of Finance & Exploration, development and

Assets Department
RBEERRIRLRE

Chief Accountant
metti

product and marketing of
crude oil and natural gas

FRRARROR - REELE
ik i3

Marketing of natural gas
RARTHHE

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above entities, the
Company has therefore been capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the above businesses.
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EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

There is no significant event affecting the Company after the date of
the statement of financial position.

AUDITOR

According to the relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC and the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Counsel, KPMG retired as the auditor of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company convened on
26 May 2021, and following its retirement, PricewaterhouseCoopers
has been appointed as the auditor of the Company. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 25 March
2021.

The financial statements for the Year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who retire and being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for reappointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Qian Zhijia
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Kunlun Energy Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 88 to 203, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

VA K:

RERBETMAGRMACEEXSEERE
STRD (AT ERITRID - RABIRES
- WEETTATHNEMEREREL -

FAREs SR

MRETFTAESREBERMOFRHE - R
REAPEEVBBRRNBIRAEENS
B BEFHRERMFAEERSEVHR
RNMOABRBETREN - ZAFTEYHE
LEREHEFBOER -

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to “Recoverability of the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment relating to the liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants”.

BAEEFTTENERFAFTARERERCRARTINGD M IHARYE « BEERENREEEN A=K

Moo

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BREIEE RANESNIEERRETSR

Recoverability of the carrying amount of property, plant and In addressing this matter, we performed the following
equipment relating to the liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing procedures, among others:
plants EREZEEE - HAIMTTUATER - HP e -

BERERARTLNG D MIBEBNE - BERRAENREEENTE
et .

Refer to note 3(l)(ii), note 5 and note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, at 31 December 2022, the net book value of Group’s property,
plant and equipment relating to the Group’s LNG processing plants
amounted to RMB7,049 million, which was stated net of accumulated
impairment of RMB4,314 million. The net impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment relating to the LNG processing plants provided in
the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to RMB303 million.
BB B RRMEES()() - M5 RMIFE16 - R2022F12A310 - &
SELNGNIHKEBYE  BERREONEEHFEAARKT 04988
7T REPREARK4314BE T - W2022F12A318 » EXEG R
INGINIHEBYE  BERRENORESRFESARBI0EE

7TE: o

Uncertainty in future LNG prices, future production costs, changes in e
operating conditions and the economic outlook gave rise to possible
indicators that the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment
relating to the LNG processing plants as at 31 December 2022 might
be impaired. J
ARINGERMAREERRNONMEE L - BERI MG BRI ROE L
RAR2022F 12 A3 AEAINGII TRABEME - BE&IENREE
B FERETR
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Obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment of property, plant and equipment
relating to the LNG processing plants and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias and fraud;
HETERBEINGIIREBYE  MFEk&E
SRR AR R B PR R AT R AR - WiRAE R
st N M VA2 e B A B LB (R R A9k ZE 40
R EBMN  ELENUERERREIERN
R SHMETERBERNERRR

Evaluated the outcome of prior year impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment
relating to the LNG processing plants to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process;
AHE E—FEEINGINIHEBYE - BE L&
REAANER - DT EBEREMTAENENR
1
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The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to “Recoverability of the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment relating to the liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants”. (Continued)

BAEETTENEREAFTARERERECRARTINGD M IHARYE « BEERENREEEN R E K

% o (%)

Key Audit Matter

BRETEER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ET N AEERRETSE

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the carrying amount of LNG processing plants exceeds the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
The Group’s determination of the recoverable amounts
involved key estimates and assumptions, including:
WMEBEIELNGII TR REEEERE A FENR
BREKAEAGEAEBEMETRSENSERR - B8
B FEE A] e ol & 5B N BRSR fhat MRER - BFE ¢

— Future LNG prices;
- RELNGE

— Future production costs; and

- RIREERAK: K&

— Discount rates.
- WEE .

Because of the significance of the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment relating to the Group’s LNG
processing plants as at 31 December 2022, together with
the significant estimates and judgements by management
in the use of key estimates and assumptions in determining
recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment
relating to the LNG processing plants, we have placed
our audit emphasis on this matter.

AR EEEEINGINIIHEEYE - BE &REN2022
F12AANERESBAEKN - BEBEERELNGINT
FAERE R - BB M RE R B AR AR
REFERTEARNMETMAE - Bt - HAERFFE
BT THEE -

e Fvaluated and tested the key controls relating to the
determination of recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment relating to the LNG processing
plants;

o FEIWARTEEEINGINIHAEBDE  BE KK
R R S R R e R R

e Assessed the appropriateness of the method used to
determine recoverable amounts, including methodology
adopted in the discounted cash flow projections,
tested mathematical accuracy of the projections, and
the completeness, accuracy, and relevance of the
underlying data used in the projections;

o TMEMETERIKMEBISEAATEANEEY - BERFR
RensBARKANGE - AR THEEHAENE
W URFERIFTAERERN TR - EmERAE
B

e Compared estimates of future LNG prices adopted by
the Group against a range of published LNG prices
forecasts;

e KESEBEFARRRLNGERGETE-RIKEBED A
MEILNGEBTRRIETTLLR

e Compared future production costs against historical
costs or relevant budgets of the Group or relevant
external data;

o BESMELPEBHARKREERAEEEBE LK
AN AERA TR B SHARRA SN BURETT LR
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The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to “Recoverability of the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment relating to the liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants”. (Continued)
BAEEATHIOERETFERSANEREARARTINGD) IIHRAE@EYE - BEMRENREEEN ] B
Moo (88)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HEETEE EMANEFFTNMNEEERETSHE

e Used internal professionals with specialised skill
and knowledge to assist in the evaluation of the
appropriateness of discount rates adopted by the
management; and

e MAEABREXRNMMBHANITLEXALHEFEE
BEKANTRXANEZNE : &

e Assessed the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the recoverability of the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
relating to the LNG processing plants in the context
of the applicable financial reporting framework under
HKFRSs.

s REFEVMBHRSEATHEBMBHREER - E
REMEMEPRINGIN THRABAME - BE K& E
B BR T & RE A AT UL O 1 VB HE A 4R BR -

Based on the above, we found the key estimates and
assumptions and input data adopted by management in
determining the recoverable amounts were supported by
the evidence we obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RE

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hon Chong Heng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023

87 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022

RERIEEAEBMNEERT - RAEEWLSE
HH ARV BREANEARREE -
MBS E R - WPIERBEMREP
M E LRI - RIPDEBERTAFRRAH
BELFEH  HEBRFRNERT - R
EEAMAERMRETEAREHEKNE
HRREBEENARMNE - RIVRE &
EHETBERBZER

HERBI ZAEMBRENETREEBAR
BRE °

BOERKESTMERAT
PR BATED

E& - 2023F3H28H



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEeEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12 A31 B ILFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’million  RMB’million
izt AREEBEEBRT ARBBEET
Continuing operations BESEER
Revenue WA 6 171,944 138,547
Other gains, net Hiolas - 58 7 62 934
Interest income FEHA 8 859 529
Purchases, services and others - R R EAM (146,077) (115,893)
Employee compensation costs EEMEK A 9 (5,749) (5,485)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation nE  BREREH (4,887) (4,623)
Impairment losses on property, plant and ME - BERZEREEE
equipment 16 (500) (159)
Other selling, general and administrative expenses ~ EfiHE « —RUEFEIEEH (3,770) (3,400)
Taxes other than income taxes BRETISRAIN 2 BE1B (583) (447)
Interest expenses FEX 10 (899) (783)
Share of profits less losses of: JEA % R B 18
- Associates . =VNS] 17 525 874
— Joint ventures —5EDLE 18 467 482
Profit before income tax expense from RELEEBRMEHERET
continuing operations 11 11,392 10,576
Income tax expense s EHR 13 (3,189) (2,698)
Profit for the year from continuing operations FERKEEKERNEF 8,203 7,878
Discontinued operations BRIEBFEREEL
Profit for the year from discontinued operations BRI ECEEBTRET 36 - 18,459
Profit for the year FREF 8,203 26,337
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2wk
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: ~ TAIEFHHDEZIERZER ¢
— Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair —BAFEFAEMEEREZ
value through other comprehensive income ERMEEZRTE
(non-recycling), net of tax (E18),/ Wzt (R EE
1Ba) - MERTIIAR (238) 270
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to HgnEHmoBzEn e iER ¢
profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation of - BRBRECELEE - 1k
financial statements, net of nil tax, of: THIER -
— Subsidiaries L= 50 (184)
- Associates =N 17 8 (17)
- Joint ventures —-REL%¥ 18 119 (29)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMZE(EER) WE
for the year (61) 40
Total comprehensive income for the year FREHEKRHEE 8,142 26,377
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mETHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

2022 2021

20225 20214F
Note RMB’million  RMB’million
iz ARBEEBRT ARBEERT

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders of 7N/ &A% 3R FE 14 4 934 F
the Company from
- continuing operations —RBECEER 5,228 5,141
- discontinued operations —BRIEBBCEER 36 - 17,875
5,228 23,016
Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling IR RGBT
interests from
- continuing operations — RS EET 2,975 2,737
- discontinued operations —BRIFBECEER 36 - 584
2,975 3,321
Profit for the year FERER 8,203 26,337
Total comprehensive income for the year AARREEEFAZEKEREE
attributable to shareholders of the Company
from
- continuing operations —RBECEERK 5,200 5,136
- discontinued operations —BRIFRBECEEK - 17,875
5,200 23,011
Total comprehensive income for the year FARGEEEKRERE -
attributable to:
- Shareholders of the Company VNG 5,200 23,011
— Non-controlling interests — IR M R 2,942 3,366
8,142 06,377
Basic and diluted earings per share for profit AARRREGRN 2 BREANE
attributable to shareholders of the Company SBRMARES)
(RMB cent) from 14
- continuing operations —RBEREER 60.38 59.37
— discontinued operations —BERIEBELEER - 206.43
60.38 265.80

The notes on pages 97 to 203 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to shareholders of the Company attributable

to the profit for the year are set out in Note 15.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE BRI R

As at 31 December 2022 72022912 831H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’million RMB’million
W AREBEEBERT ARBBHER
Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 16 69,534 69,714
Investments in associates REEE R R ZIRE 17 7,909 7,248
Investments in joint ventures REBLEZRE 18 6,056 5,777
Intangible assets mEE 20 1,849 1,956
Financial assets at fair value through BEAVERAREMZE
other comprehensive income Wz emEE 21 319 564
Other non-current assets HMIEmBEE 22 771 981
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE B 31 1,115 1,204
e 87,558 1 87,444
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 23 1,081 1,230
Accounts receivable FEURER SR 24 2,887 2,728
Prepayments and other current assets ~ TAfT R E MR ENEE 25 7,890 12,686
Time deposits with maturities over IHABE=EAZ
three months TEHIF R 26 19,439 —
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReZEEIER 26 20,042 28,494
i 51,339 45,138
Total assets HEE 138,892 132,582
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable to &2 TR REML R #E
shareholders of the Company
Share capital &N 27 71 71
Retained earnings B AT 28 28,095 25,236
Other reserves HAithi# % 28 31,742 30,968
59,908 56,275
Non-controlling interests FEIEHI M RE S 20,794 19,586
Total equity RS 80,702 75,861
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRR

As at 31 December 2022 722022912 A31H

2022 2021

20224 20214

Note RMB’million RMB’million
izt AR¥BEEBER ARKEEBT

Liabilities =L
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable and accrued FERERRESEE
liabilities 29 27,720 27,267
Income tax payable FESETS L 31 623 648
Other taxes payable HE M HiE 546 273
Short-term borrowings HHEE 30 5,287 5,854
Lease liabilities HEAE 208 177
. 34,384 ¢ 34,219
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Long-term borrowings REIEE 30 19,794 18,611
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEBE 31 1,858 1,760
Lease liabilities HeaE 562 535
Other liabilities HivBE&E 1,592 1,596
. 23,806 . 22,502
Total liabilites i mes| 58,190 | 56,721
Total equity and liabilities EERAEETE 138,892 132,582
Net current assets RBEEFE 16,955 10,919
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 104,508 98,363

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28  2023F3 A28 A E =S L W IRET|E -
March 2023.

Qian Zhijia Gao Xiangzhong
A% SRR
Executive Director #177& % Executive Director #177Z %F

o

The notes on pages 97 to 203 form part of these financial 2 97ZE203B WM EHBAK A B Im* < — =B
statements. b2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £E2022F 12 A31HILFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
AAREREL Non-
Share  Retained Other controlling
capital earnings reserves  Sub-total interests  Total equity
Rx  BEBR EHMRE NtOFBHtER  ERAE
Note  RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB’million ~ RMB’million
Wit ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARMAER AR¥AEER ARMEER

Balances at 1 January 2021 R0 E1 A 1R L5 7 31,557 21,956 53,584 30,943 84,527
Changes in equity for 2021: NWAEERLT:

Profit for the year anyayil = 23016 = 23,016 3,321 26,337
Other comprehensive income A 2ERE - - () 6) 45 40
Tota comprehensive ncome for e year  FMEEAGEE - B0 S L 3366 26977

Transfer between reserves FEmEs - (566) 566 = = =
Final and special dividend for 2020 020 KERERRE 15 - 20,320) = 20.320) = 20.320)
Acquisition from non-controling interests ~ [FEERHIEER iR - = - - (31) (31)
Dividend to non-controling interests BRI ER 2 RE - - - - (3,838) 3,839)
Capital contrioutions from non-controling ~~ FEEHI4ER 218

interests - - - - 1,441 1,441
Disposal of subsidiaries REMBAF 2 - (8,451) 8,451 - (12,295) (12,205)

S ... M S0 s (47 (3504

Balances at 31 December 2021 R2021 51231 BE R 7 25,236 30,968 56,275 19,586 75,861
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERBREER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Qﬂﬁi%{a Non-
Share  Retained Other controlling
capital earnings reserves  Sub-total interests  Total equity
kx  RERA HitRe Nt EBHItER  BRAE
Note  RMB'million RMB’million RMB’million RMB'million RMB’million  RMB’million
E AR%EER AR¥EER ARMEEn ARMEEn ARMEER ARMEER
Balances at 1 January 2022 R020E1A1EER Il 25,236 30,968 56,275 19,586 75,861
Changes in equity for 2022: N0EEREE:
Profit for the year ERET - 5,208 - 5,28 2,975 8,203
Other comprehensive income A 2ERE - - (28) (28) (33) (61)
Tt e SREEKESE - sm @ s g% e
Transfer between reserves RERER - (570) 570 - - -
Final dividend for 2021 NNEREME 15 - (1,799) - (1,799) - (1,799)
Acquisttion from non-controling interests ~ FIFEE B BRI - - 2 2 (17) (15)
Dividend to non-controling Interests BRI RG2S - - - - (1,633) (1,633)
Capital contrioutions from non-controling ~ FEHISER 21
interests - - - - 35 35
Disposal of subsidiaries RENBAT - - - - (119) (119)
Others At - - 20 230 - 230
... R g2 (wsen (34 @30)
Balances at 31 December 2022 R20225 12831 B &% " 28,095 31,742 59,908 20,794 80,702

The notes on pages 97 to 203 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12 A31 B ILFE

2022 2021
2022% 20216
Note ~ RMB’million  RMB’million
Bz AR¥BER ARKBER
Cash flows from operating activities REERMEBzRSRE
Profit for the year from FREH
- continuing operations — R EEE 8,203 7,878
— discontinued operations —BRIEBECEER 36 - 18,459
Profit for the year F N5 F 8,203 26,337
Adjustments for: HE
Income tax expense 5 &R 3,189 4,461
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation e - 1BEREE 4,887 4,623
Share of profits less losses of associates FEIGHE & AR R FIREE (525) (874)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures EIERERERTIFEE (467) (482)
Impairment losses on property, plant and ME - BERZERESE
equipment 500 159
Impairment loss on joint ventures BELERERBE - 12
Net gains on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERSZEZ
equipment W 5 RE (14) (2)
Net gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR 2 W 558 (64) (16,960)
Net exchange losses/(gains) [ 5 g8 (Mas ) 38 589 (254)
Interest income FEMA (859) (540)
Interest expenses FEXH 899 851
Changes in working capital: LEADH
Inventories I3 (35) (310)
Accounts receivable U BR TR (159) 1,337
Prepayments and other current assets FERFAREAM B E E 409 (4,020)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ENERRETAE 1,055 678
Other taxes payable Hin fE{THIIR 273 78
Cash generated from operations REELE VRS 17,881 15,094
Income tax paid ERFTEH (3,011) (3,094)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEEELZESTHE 14,870 12,000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Note ~ RMB’million  RMB’million
iz AR¥BER ARKBER

Cash flows from investing activities REXBFB2RERE
Dividends received from associates ELIUNGIE ) P 5 443 591
Dividends received from joint ventures BAEMCEMIMBRE 313 159
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHT B A A (314) (383)
Acquisition of associates 1A oyNE] (67) (98)
Capital contributions to associates M FEE (470) (608)
Capital contributions to joint ventures RMEETETE (7 (2,137)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, net of HEWB AR ZFEHRE - kT

cash and cash equivalents disposed of ERe A EEER 4,138 32,487
Proceeds from disposal of associates HERE N E 2 FSHRIE 54 131
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures HEARELEZFBHIE 6 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME « BFER&E2EHIE

equipment 1,427 1,365
Decrease in amounts due from an intermediate  JEUR P REIEAR A FIFIAE

holding company A 204 1,223
Capital expenditure BARMAY (5,719) (7,864)
Interest received LGN 784 540
Loans to an associate —fHE RN ERER (5) (4)
Loans repaid by a joint venture —HEETEERER 200 200
Increase of time deposits with maturities over FEREBB= A A 2 FBE g n

three months (19,439) -
Net cash generated from investing activities REEBELREFE (18,452) 25,602
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

2022 2021
20224 20214
Note ~ RMB’million  RMB’million
Bz AR¥BER ARKBER

Cash flows from financing activities METEE2HERE
Capital contributions from non-controlling IR T E

interests 35 1,441
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company Bt AR RRERE 15 & 26(b) (1,799) (20,320)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest of RENLRIEVNGIEEEE e 253085,

subsidiaries 26(0) (1,005) (3,868)
Increase in borrowings EEEM 26(b) 8,438 8,020
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 26(b) (8,382) (9,621)
Interest paid ERFE 26(b) (894) (1,002)
Capital element of lease paid EREERS D 26(b) (361) (309)
Interest element of lease paid BENHEERN SR 26(b) (35) (33)
Acquisition from non-controlling interests BEEZEL-FE (17) (31)
Net cash used in financing activities METEHTAZREFHE (4,920) (25,723)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEBEA 2EM (8,502) 11,879
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MAIBZEERELZEHER 28,494 16,690
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exgnso e 50 (75)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December W12A31A2HERELEEER 26 20,042 28,494

The notes on pages 97 to 203 form part of these financial statements.  #97 £203 B #I i s B A B 5 ek 2 — =B

7_3\ o

N

EREFERAT —S-—FEEHSE 06



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & %£2022F12A31HILFE

97

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kunlun Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Its ultimate holding company is China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC”) which is a company established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). 4,708,302,133 shares
of the Company is held by PetroChina Hong Kong Limited
(“PetroChina HK”), which is a company incorporated in Hong
Kong and is in turn wholly-owned by PetroChina Company
Limited (“PetroChina”), a subsidiary of CNPC, and its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. As
at 31 December 2022, PetroChina indirectly owned 54.38%
(2021: 54.38%) equity interest in the Company.

The addresses of the Company’s principal office and registered
office are 39/F, 118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong and
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda,
respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are the sales of natural gas, sales of
liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) and liquefied natural gas
(“"LNG”) processing and terminal business in the PRC, and
the exploration and production of crude oil and natural gas
in the PRC, the Republic of Kazakhstan (“Kazakhstan”), the
Sultanate of Oman (“Oman”), the Republic of Peru (“Peru”)
and the Kingdom of Thailand (“Thailand”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which is a collective
term including all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group, none of these
have had a material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

2

99

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 comprise the Group and the Group’s
interest in associates and joint ventures.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis except for financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income which are
stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out in Note 3(g).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEZTIHEEK

(@) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (@)

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra- group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 3(g))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture (see
Note 3(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 3(I)(ii)).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, which includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate or joint venture that forms part of the
Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised as profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised as other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with any other long- term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate or the joint venture (after applying the
expected credit loss model to such other long-term
interests where applicable (see Note 3(l)(i))).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses. Impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount (see Note 3(1)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Accounting for production sharing contracts

(d)

Production sharing contracts constitute joint operations.
The Group shall recognise in relation to its interest in joint
operations:

(i)

(if

(i)

(iv)

v)

its assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;

its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operations;

its share of the revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operations; and

its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

Foreign currencies

0

Functional currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currencies (Continued)

(il

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into presentation currency at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into presentation
currency at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
translation reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied
at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

3

EEEFTECR(E)
(d) SMEECE)

()

SN

FRN - INERSER S AE
FAZERBE o AINEEHE
WEREENABAKER
HRMERGRE - EXRE

B ERANAINE B E LR
BZEREERAR &
RPHAZERBRE - XFH
RN B A TE R ARRE 3F
EREEXBENAH - N
SNEEHEY AR FESIRZ
FEREERABRER
FEEAZEREZE -

TGINETS 2 EEBRER 5 H
B EAEXRAE ZEXR
BEREEMREE - BBEKRE
HEB(BEA HFR20054 1
R1B A& W E 2 BN
BRIEAZEE)IRE M
RKZBMERBELESRE
B TEAZER ZENHE
b2 AU S FER I IB T R et
REE R #EENERA - Aa
B 200541 A1 8 A i BE
ZBINEBMEE 2 EER
W BN ERE BERZE

2 =3
K@ o

HEBINEBE - BlZE
SN 2 BE R ZRE 2 RETEK
BN R L SRR b
EFORERS °

EREBARAT —E-—FaERE 104



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(€)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties and construction in progress, are initially
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost where it is probable that they will generate future
economic benefits. Cost represents the purchase price of
the asset and other costs incurred to bring the asset into
existing use. For construction in progress, cost comprises
direct costs of construction as well as interest charges, and
foreign exchange differences on related borrowed funds
to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest charges, during the periods of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment when the asset is substantially ready for
its intended use. Subsequent to their initial recognition,
property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortisation
(including any impairment) (see Note 3(l)(ii)).

Depreciation to write-off the cost of each asset, other than
oil and gas properties, to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives is calculated using the straight-line
method.

The Group uses the following useful lives for depreciation
purposes:

Buildings 40 years or over the
remaining period of
respective leases

whichever is the shorter

- Leasehold land leased lease term
for own use

- Natural gas pipelines 10-30 years

- Equipment and 4-30 years
machinery

- Motor vehicles 4-14 years

- Others 5-12 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

EFEEFBERGE)
ME - RERRE(E)

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (e)

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortised at the field
level based on the units of production method.

No depreciation is provided for construction in progress
until the assets are completed and ready for use.

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment are determined by reference to their carrying
amounts and are recorded in profit or loss.

Interest and other costs on borrowings to finance the
construction of property, plant and equipment are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Costs
for repair and maintenance activities are expensed as
incurred except for costs of components that result in
improvements or betterments which are capitalised as
part of property, plant and equipment and depreciated
over their useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f

Intangible assets

0

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwillis stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination
is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups
of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Separately
recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 3(|)(ii)). Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f

Intangible assets (Continued)

(il

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)
and impairment losses (see Note 3(l)(ii)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy
for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives
as set out above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(9) Other investments in debt and equity

securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investments. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at fair value through profit
orloss (“FVPL”) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the
Group determines fair value of financial instruments, see
Note 4.3. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification.

(i)  Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3 FESTER(E)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity (9) MEBRIEAEHFNE

securities (Continued) i & (&])
() Investments other than equity (i) RBEAEERINZE
investments (Continued) &(5E)

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) - recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in profit
or loss of impairment losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income
is recycled from equity to profit or loss.

FVPL, if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9) Other investments in debt and equity
securities (Continued)

(il

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument- by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss
as other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

0

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease components and
non-lease components, the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

0

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expenses is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
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3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

0

)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change
in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3 =

(i)

()

Inventories

Inventories include natural gas, crude oil and others which
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories is primarily determined by the weighted
average cost method, which comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads, but excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the cost of completion and selling expenses.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 3(l)(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k) Accounts receivable

()

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

0

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL
on financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, accounts and
other receivables, and contract assets, which are
held for the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and interest)
and debt securities measured at FVOCI (recycling).

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income measured at fair value,
including equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-
recycling), are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the
ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for accounts receivable, lease
receivables and contract assets, are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

3 FESTIHHEE(E)
(1) %EEE%EE%E

(%

(7

FIERAEEERE)

EREEMERTA - K
SHEHSURFR12(E A K
B EEERRSRERER
B BRIFEB PR TER IR X
TRTANEERREZE
e EUWERT - BEE
wENEEFERNERE
EBIESRETE °

1ZEE R ZE I

ERft R T ANEERR
B AR 2 RRE LN
B AEEHRHEE B
HE T RAEORRILE
VaRER S S R E D E R
TELLER o FEAETTULIREHTAY
- AEBERRE T
BRBELERDENSEMT ()
fERAN IR E AR S BB
=Pl - BRER) (10
FRA)WBR TAAKEZE
BXNEEESRY ()%
TREERYBEBROA -
rEEeEREAEMNAER
MEENEMEN - B8
ERBLREFTEBZHNK
R &5 N FERH AT IR
£t o

EREFERAT —s-—FEEHSs 118



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0

(il

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVOCI (recycling),
for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair
value reserve (recycling).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets

- oil and gas properties;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not ready for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs of sell and
its value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre- tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash- generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the non-financial
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss in respect of assets other
than goodwill is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. A
reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, deposits held with banks and highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in Note 3()(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n) Accounts payable

(0)

()

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are measured initially at fair value less
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has unconditional rights to defer settlements of
the liabilities for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Taxation

Income tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(p) Taxation (Continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Group, associates and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial
recognition of goodwill. The deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
statement of financial position date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences arising on investments in foreign
operations where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

The Group also incurs various other taxes and levies that
are not income tax. “Taxes other than income taxes”,
which form part of operating expenses, primarily comprise
resource tax, urban construction tax and education
surcharges.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the
use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

() Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering
other goods and/or services, then the amount of
revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion of the
total transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods and services promised under
the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(r

(i)  Rendering of services

The Group’s revenue from rendering of services is
primarily attributable to provision of LNG gasification
and unloading services. Revenue from the rendering
of these services is recognised in the profit or loss
upon the gasification or unloading of LNG.

(ii) Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Government grants

Government grants are the gratuitous monetary assets
or non-monetary assets that the Group receives from the
government, excluding capital injection by the government
as an investor. Special funds such as investment grants
allocated by the government, if clearly defined in official
documents as part of “capital reserve” are dealt with as
capital contributions, and not regarded as government
grants.

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the grants will be received and the Group
is able to comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Government grants in the form of monetary assets are
recorded based on the amount received or receivable,
whereas non-monetary assets are measured at fair value.

Government grants received in relation to assets are
recorded as deferred income, and recognised evenly in
profit or loss over the assets’ useful lives. Government
grants received in relation to revenue are recorded as
deferred income, and recognised as income in future
periods as compensation when the associated future
expenses or losses arise; or directly recognised as income
in the current period as compensation for past expenses
or losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: (i) the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; (i) it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and (iii) reliable
estimates of the amount can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expenses.

Retirement benefit plans

The Group contributes to various employee retirement
benefit plans organised by PRC municipal and provincial
governments under which it is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at prescribed rates for its
employees in the PRC. The relevant PRC municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of existing and future retired employees
of the Group in the PRC. The Group has similar retirement
benefit plans for its employees in its overseas operations.
Contributions to these PRC and overseas plans are
charged to expense as incurred. The Group currently
has no additional material obligations outstanding for the
payment of retirement and other post retirement benefits of
employees in the PRC or overseas other than the monthly
contributions described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties

(@)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(0

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties (Continued)

(v)

(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management and
Executive Directors for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w) Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale
and discontinued operations

0

Non-current assets held-for-sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held-for-sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available-for-sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets
to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with
those assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held-
for-sale when the above criteria for classification
as held-for-sale are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and
all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal
group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held-for-sale and until disposal,
the non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements
of the Group and the Company are concerned are
deferred tax assets and financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries). These assets, even if
held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in
Note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w) Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale
and discontinued operations (Continued)

U

Non-current assets held-for-sale
(Continued)

Impairment losses on initial classification as held-
for-sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while
held-for-sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long
as a non-current asset is classified as held-for-sale,
orisincluded in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated
or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held-for-sale (see (i) above),
if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
groups constituting the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4.1 Financial risk factors

Exposure to foreign exchange rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks
and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks in continuing
operations are described below.

Risk management is carried out by the management of the
Group under policies approved by the Board of Directors.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner. There has been no change
to the Group’s exposure to the risks mentioned above or
the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

(a) Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange rate risk
primarily through sales and purchases which give
rise to receivables, payables and cash balances that
are denominated in foreign currencies, i.e. currencies
other than the functional currencies of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currency giving
rise to this risk is primarily United States dollar (“US
dollar”).

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to foreign exchange
rate risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in RMB, translated using the spot rate
at the year end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency
are excluded.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 4
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

HFEEREEREMIARD

FE(E)

41 BIBEEMERE)

(@)

Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in RMB)

SN e (48 )

HNERRB
(UARHIITR)
2022 2021
20226 20216
US dollar HK$ US dollar HK$
EY BT X BT
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB'million
ARBEEBT AR¥EERT ARKEERT AREKEER
Accounts receivable and  EUEBRFI R E M REBEE
other current assets 3 11 1 11
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KEEEEER 134 34 279 40
Time deposits with FHABA=A 2 EH
maturities over three o
months 350 - - _
Accounts payable and ENERLEMAE
accrued liabilities (47) (64) (43) (74)
Borrowings ET (6,951) - (6,358) =
Gross exposure arising EHREERBRELZ
from recognised assets aEk
and liabilties (6,511) (19) 6,121) 23)
The following table indicates the instantaneous TR R MAE B R RS H
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained R T ¥ 25 K R Bee HO B 3R A R
earnings) that would arise if foreign exchange rates AHIREEE - AEEHRK
to which the Group has significant exposure at the BiEaf(RRFRH) &
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, e & 2 (RERFT A H M3 b
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. BYRETE) -
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4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 4
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

2022

20226
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in increase in profit
foreign exchange for the year and
rates retained earnings

HEEREEREMIAR
FE(E)

Bt iE MR E R (4])
(a) SMERPER ()

2021
20216
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in - increase in profit
foreign exchange  for the year and

rates  retained earnings

RMB’million RMB’million
Ex FREARRER BX FREMREFR
tH/(TR)  FOED) /B EH/(TR)  FORD)/Em
AR¥EER AREEETL
US dollar 5% 5% (326) 5% (306)
(5%) 326 (5%) 306
HKS BT 5% (1) 5% (1)
(5%) 1 (5%) 1
Credit risk (b) EERR
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will FEHV%*%&T?*
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a THANEXMERAEE
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk “?‘\HM“TEQEZH o K&
arises primarily from accounts receivable. BEvEERBEZERGNE
”&E\ETA °

As a majority of the Group’s cash at bank and
time deposits were placed with major state-owned
banks in Mainland China, major banks in Hong Kong,
and financial institutions within the CNPC Group,
management believes that the credit risk is low.

=
==

REBABDRITHRE KE
HIfE ST A R B A 3 9
ZEART - BAEANER
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B BEEERAEEARK
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Depending on market conditions, debtors
with balances that are past due over a certain period
would be requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts
receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases and the customer
bases are separated into the related parties and
third parties. The management considered that the
credit risk associated with accounts receivable from
related parties is low, taking into account the financial
position, past experience and other factors of the
related parties. The expected credit loss rate for
accounts receivable from related parties is immaterial
under lifetime ECLs method. Thus, no loss allowance
for accounts receivable from related parties was

recognised.

135 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022

MEREEREMIARD

FE(E

41 BIBEEMERE)

(b)

=ERR(E)

REBEMEBRBEET
EEEBRIEPETHERE
EFh - ZEFEEFR
EFBEEEIHKREZRC
BRBRIZERESN A
EREPZHEEMARE
FaB2EERE - AT m
N RGBS —RERE
ZIEBANBERBERBRER
BRERIR - IR ERAEMIRRSN
EE - —KRME  A&H
PERFEFPRERHENR -

AEBIZBERBEFEY
MIRHEE RN BB E
EEAE) 2B ERK
R IR RE - RS
BBTEEERERATH
BEFDH2RBETRE
BRI B AKETRE
FEEE—FREIRESH
BRERZEBREE - XD
KPR D DR ME
=77 - BBEERE I Y
Bk - BELRNEEME
% BEER/KE R

H W R R AR E B R
RE - RRBEFEHNE
HEEBIETE - KE Rk
HH MR R TEEEEE
BRI AEKR - Btk - R
BHER K A R 7 60 AR
R EERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 4 BiIEMEERESHITAER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) EE(LE)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BHIEREBEZE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERRE)
The following table provides information about TREH‘REERNEERFE=
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for FHEBERFERZ 2 EERR
accounts receivable from third parties: RBHEEEBE &R
2022
20224
Gross Provision on
carrying Individual Loss
amount basis ECL rates ECLs allowance
®ERIER BHEE
REAE HERE BEEX RBHGERE FERE
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT AR%EER % AREBERT ARWEER
Within 1 year —ER 1,535 @ 4.04% (62) (64)
Between 1 to 2 years —EMER 298 (1) 19.53% (58) (59)
Between 2 to 3 years ME=ZFR 437 (2) 42.99% (187) (189)
Between 3to 4 years ~ =ZEMNFR 97 (18) 64.56% (51) (69)
Between 4 to 5 years NERFR 76 (10) 100.00% (66) (76)
Over 5 years RFENUE 330 (184) 100.00% (146) (330)
2,773 (217) (570) (787)
2021
20214
Gross carrying  Provision on Loss
amount Individual basis ECL rates ECLs allowance

RIERIER BHEE
REAE HERE BEX RHEEER BRRE

RMB'million  RMB’million RMB'milion ~ RMB’million

ARERETL ARKBER % AREBET ARKBER

Within 1 year —ER 1,898 (26) 3.57% (67) (93)
Between 1 to 2 years —EMER 632 ) 20.49% (129) (131)
Between 2to 3years ~ MZE=FR 157 2 35.41% (55) (57)
Between 3 to 4 years “EMER 106 (6) 64.85% (65) (71)
Between 4 to 5 years NERFR 56 ) 100.00% (45) (56)
Over 5 years AFNE 315 (163) 100.00% (152) (315)
3,164 (210) (513) (723)
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e U BERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 4

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

ECL rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past five years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives
of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of accounts receivable during the year is as follows:

HEEREENRSMTIAR
FE(E)

4.1 BBEEREEE

(o)

EERR(E)

BEMEERREENBER
FZERERERITHE - %
FERRIFES BIEEES
B 2 IR ~ BB AR SR
B Fr R/ 2 PR AR SR TR BT
BHAZEBERR=F 2
ZERBEITHAE °

FE MR R 2 B IR R B AR PO 4R
NZEBIT -

2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’million  RMB’million
ARMEET ARKEST

Balance at 1 January M1 A1B &% 723 614
Amounts written off iz ol /S (41) (16)
Impairment losses recognised, net WRZBEEE - F5 105 125
Balance at 31 December 12831 B &8k 787 723
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 4
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
Group’s expected credit loss model for other
receivables is as follows:

Category
Ehl

Group definition of category

FEMHHERRINER

HEEREEREMIAR
FE(E)

4.1 ji%npﬁ.?(nﬁ)
b) EERR(E)
At JEW K TE
NEE A M RIA TR BR{E
EEBRRX AR RZ M
LU
Basis for recognition of expected credit

loss provision

BARHEEFRRENER

Performing (“Stage 17)

IER([B&R1))

Underperforming
(“Stage 27)

B ([FeR2))

Non-performing
(“Stage 3")
AR(TKEER3])

Customers have a low risk of default and
a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flows

EPENRK
%E

REHEITANRSRENEN

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments are
30 days past due

FEUHENEERBBZEN : WHER/
FAEETBIOKX - MIRREERE
BEZ

Interest and/or principal repayments are
90 days past due

12 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less than
12 months, expected losses are measured
at its expected lifetime (“12 months ECL
method”)

128 ATEHEE - WEENEHFERIR
12{88 - EHBEENEERDFEENHE
(M2 ARSEBEE])

Lifetime expected losses

FENESER

Lifetime expected losses

FEURSER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

Other receivables have been assessed for impairment
on a collective basis based on different credit risk
characteristics. Other receivables are categorised as

follows for assessment purpose:

Group 1 Specific provision
Group 2 Other receivables due from related
parties

Group 3 Other receivables due from other

parties

The Group has assessed that there is no significant
increase of credit risk for other receivables since
initial recognition. Thus, the Group used the 12
months expected losses and specific provision to
assess credit loss of other receivables. The Group
has assessed that the expected credit losses of other

receivables is not significant.

139 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022

4 BBEREEREHMIARD
FE(E)

41 BIBEEMERE)

(b)

EERR(E)
B A A ()

H it R YR IAE RIBET R &Y
EER RS EIZ KR A EE
AR R A - RETTAE
H R IRIZ A N T A

1
Hrl BEEE

MRl2 AR E MR
|

MARI EUEM AT EA

IR

AEEEHEIALER 8 15
TR AR DA SR EL A FE WO IR RO (5
SRR EBELEN - H
g AKEFER12(EA &
HIE R R Rt i E A
ERRBENEEEER - K
SEEFERRBREMER
REMFAMEEERY A E
* o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables (Continued)
The loss allowance for other receivables at amortised

cost as at 31 December 2022 reconciles to the
opening loss allowance as follows:

4 BBEREEREMIARD
FE(E)

41 BRI EZE(E)
b) EERRE)
E it fEN K TE ()
2022412 431 B 1R 84

PR 7 51) B B L A UK R TR S
BEREERVBRBEYR

LU
Other
receivables
H th fE WK IE
RMB Million
AREBET
Opening loss allowance as at 1 January 2021 20211 A1 B ERVEE
B 79
Increase in the allowance recognised in profit or AR B IER A B E
loss during the period 2 n 18
Closing loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 M2021F12 31 BV ERR
Eia R 97
Increase in the allowance recognised in profit or AR B IER B HE
loss during the period 2 n 88
Closing loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 12022912 431 HAHAR
Eia R 185

No financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income carry a significant exposure
to credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk.

W EZ A FEFAR B EE
Wtz & BMEERHENRE
SRk -

AEBUBENEPZEE
R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset.

The Group’s liquidity risk management involves
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities. Management prepares
monthly cash flow budget to ensure that the Group
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group arranges and
negotiates financing with financial institutions and
maintains a certain level of standby credit facilities
to reduce the Group’s liquidity risk.

Based on the existing level of gearing and continued
access to funding, the Group believes that its liquidity
risk is not material.

Analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities based on
the remaining period at the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position to the contractual
maturity dates are presented in Notes 29 and 30.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 4
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

HEEREEREMIAR
FE(E)

41 MBEMRREEGE

Interest rate risk (Continued) (d) FE@ER(E)
The following table as reported to the management TR(BOMAEEERE
of the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of FriE s ) sl AR E R
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting HHIR 2 B8 F & kit
period. oo
2022 2021
20225 20214
Effective Effective
interest rate  RMB’million interest rate RMB’million
ERAZE AR¥EER ERFE ARERER
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE:
Bank loans BITER 417% 7,003 3.76% 8,212
Loans other than bank loans ~ BRERFTEFTLINZ ER 3.31% 13,613 3.44% 12,697
Lease liabilities ME&RE 4.28% 770 4.28% 712
21,386 21,621
Variable rate borrowings:  FE{EH:
Bank loans RITER 3.93% 4,377 4.07% 3,556
Loans other than bank loans ~ BRERFTE RIS Z ER 3.95% 88 = =
Net exposure gt 4,465 3,556

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s profit for the
year and retained earnings by approximately RMB33
million (2021: RMB29 million).

R2022F12 A31H » &K
HiSE s Tg - A5HF
K FF R A 100EE
S AEEBFERHRE
FRFR D G A R
3BEEIT(2021F : AR
20 8TT) °

EREBRERAT —S-—FFERE 142
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

HFEEREEREMIARD
FE(E)

42 BEXREEE

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 4
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern,
optimise returns for shareholders and to minimise its cost
of capital. In meeting its objectives of managing capital,
the Group may issue new shares, adjust its debt levels or
the mix between short-term and long-term borrowings.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio which is calculated as the sum of interest-bearing
borrowings and lease liabilities divided by the sum of total
equity, interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities.
The gearing ratio at 31 December 2022 is 24.26%
(2021:24.92%).

There were no changes in the management’s approach to
capital management of the Group during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.3 Fair value estimation

(@)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

= Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

= Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
valuation techniques which maximise the use
of observable market data and rely as little
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

HEEREEREMIAR
FE(E)

4.3 DF{EMEE

(@)

BN TEAEZ SR
BE

AFEFR

TREJIAEEERTAYZ
NHHE - ZEERT AR
ERRIZEEEEREE
WD R A FEFEMRE
ZEBAFERE - BRF
B EDRZEBRINIKEERE
WS ETDERREIE 2 A
BERMENBEBUHRETE :

- EAMHE:ERR

HEARSAERA
B0 E R4 2 A
AERENEZAT
# -

- BIHRMEE: ERG
BEREMTEZAF
B ZEHEHRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

4 HEEREEREMIALR
FE(E)

4.3 DEHEME (&)

(a) Financial assets measured at fair value @ EAVEFT=Ez2EE
(Continued) éf?(%,\)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ANFEER(E)
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at Fair value at Fair valug measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2022 categorised into 31 December 31 December 2021 categorised info
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 202 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
A2002% H2022E12831R A H01% 12318
128318 WATEHBAEA 12A31H WATEHENER
2hYE -4 | LR LhTE -4 34 224
RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'millon ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'mion ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'milion
AEBEET ARMEEL ARMEET ARMEER AREEER ARMEER \RKEET AREEER
Recurring fair value ~ SEHATEHE
measurements
Fiencil assets atfar -~ RATEAZf
vethoughoter - 2EkEZS
comprehensive BEE
income
- Listed -t 216 216 - - 554 554 - -
- Unlisted o 3] [ - - [ 10 - - 10

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occurred.

Information about fair value measurements
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all the listed
equity securities are stated at fair values, which have

been determined by reference to bid prices quoted
in the respective stock exchanges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

HEEREEREMIAR
FE(E)

4.3 »FEMHET(E)

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 4
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial assets and (b)

liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost as of
31 December 2022 and 2021 were not materially
different from their fair values.

The fair values of long-term borrowings are based on
discounted cash flow using applicable discount rates
based upon the prevailing market rates of interest
available to the Group for financial instruments with
substantially the same terms and characteristics
at the date of the statement of financial position.
An analysis of the carrying amounts of long-term
borrowings is presented in Note 30.

WA FELAINIEE Y
SREEREBHA
i

20224 20214412 A 31
B AN&EE IR AR H
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B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Accounting judgments and estimates are regularly evaluated
by the Group, based on historical experience and other factors
which include expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant sources of judgments and estimation uncertainty arise
from the impairment assessment of the LNG processing plants
and are described as follows:

Property, plant and equipment, including construction in
progress, are reviewed for possible impairments whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Determination as to whether
and how much an asset is impaired involves management
estimates and judgements such as future prices of natural gas,
future production costs and discount rates used in discounting
the projected cash flows. However, the impairment reviews
and calculations are based on assumptions that are consistent
with the Group’s relevant budget. Favourable changes to some
assumptions may allow the Group to avoid the need to impair any
assets, whereas unfavourable changes may cause the assets to
become impaired. Note 16 contains further information about the
risk factors and carrying amounts of the LNG processing plants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

REVENUE

Revenue mainly represents revenue from the sales of natural
gas, sales of LPG, LNG processing and terminal business, and
sales of crude oil. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 by major products or
service lines is as follows:

A

WATEHEKAERARBEE « LPGHH
% - LNGINT SFER L IHERmZ
WA - BEVEREELE1GREE
NZKEREFPENZBAIRTEERSK
ARAGEERI DT -

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’million RMB’million

AR¥EERT AR¥BET

FREEERE

Continuing operations
Disaggregated by major products or

BRIBERIREHERIAD

service lines
— Sales of natural gas products —HEXRARER 131,892 105,044
- Sales of LPG — LPG#H& 29,224 24,038
- Revenue from LNG processing and — LNGHN T FERB YA
terminal service 8,542 7,733
— Sales of crude oil —HERH 2,286 1,732
171,944 138,547

The Group’s revenue are substantially derived from the sales of
goods to customers in the PRC and recognised at a point in time.
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121
of HKFRS 15 to its sales and service contracts such that the
above information does not include information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the sales or service contracts that
had an original expected duration of one year or less.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is
disclosed in Note 34.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

7  OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hfitnlkzs > FEE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBER
Continuing operations BEKEXER
Net exchange (losses)/gains PE N (B18), e F 5 (589) 254
Rental income HEWA 70 89
Government grants BT A 292 319
Net gains on disposal of property, plant ~ HEWE - BE&RE
and equipment Wiz F &8 14 7
Others Hith 275 265
62 934
8 INTEREST INCOME 8 FRUA
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBRER
Continuing operations FEREEL
Interest income on: BHEZFBHEA :
— Amounts due from related parties — FE Y B 5 k1B 244 60
- Bank deposits —iRITFER 615 469
859 529
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

9 (EESMEMA

2022 2021

20225 20214F
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEBERT AR¥EBET

Continuing operations BEKEXER

Salaries, wages and allowances e TENMER 5,253 4,988

Retirement benefits scheme contributions R {RK& 5+ E14 7% 496 497
5,749 5,485

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates
in various defined contribution retirement plans organised by
municipal and provincial governments for its employees. The
Group is required to make contributions to the retirement plans
at rates ranging from 14% to 20% of the salaries, bonus and
certain allowances of its staff. The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with
these plans beyond the annual contributions described above

The Group did not have any forfeited contribution for the year
ended 31 December 2022 in connection with the defined plan
operated by municipal and provincial government.

BRPBDERZRE AREL2EBE
RETRBAEERER TERNZE
ERHEFRAGTE - AEBAREET
e o ANETRIZ14%E20%[A
BAGTEIERE - B bl 2 FEHR
oh - REBRAAERZEHEEHZ
HiRAR SR/ RERRE -

HE2022F12A31RILEE - AEH
A AT ] B T BRI iB VB A0 B RE SR AT
215 R R U -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

10 INTEREST EXPENSES 10 FELZH

2022 2021

20225 20214
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBERT AR®BET

Continuing operations BEKEXER
Interest expenses on: FHEZFEXZH :
Bank loans IRITER 541 555
Senior notes BEEE 151 147
Other loans, from: HtEXR 8
— China Petroleum Finance Co., Ltd —HRE AR AT
(“CP Finance”) (THhBr 5 1) 241 293
— Fellow subsidiaries —RERMHBRAA - 22
Interests on lease liabilities HERBEZHE 35 29
968 1,046
Less: Amounts capitalised B BN RE (69) (263)
899 783
Amounts capitalised are borrowing costs that are attributable to BRI S BAERERE G2 EEB
the construction of qualifying assets. The average interest rate MEERAR - HE2022F12A31H 1E
used to capitalise such borrowing cost was 3.84% per annum FE BN EEEKAREZEY
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 3.99%). FEFE 53.84% (20214 : 3.99%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

11 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE FROM 11 FEREERERMEHER

CONTINUING OPERATIONS Al Al
ltems charged in arriving at the profit before income tax expense RELEEBRAGHERINEMNEH
from continuing operations include: BRIATIER :
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARKBER
Continuing operations FEREEE
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETNE
— audit services — % BARTE 23 25
— non-audit services — IR RS 2 3
Cost of inventories recognised as EHRRAZ 2 FEXR
expense 146,357 116,020
Depreciation charge and depletion of ME  BEREHZITELH
property, plant and equipment KIE#E
— owned assets —-BBEE 4,352 4,102
- right-of-use assets —ERAEEE 445 445
Amortisation cost of IATFIE B 2 #IER A
— intangible assets —EBEE 90 76
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation ~ #r& - 1B K 4,887 4,623
Impairment losses on property, plant and 1% W= R REREEE
equipment 500 159

EREBERAT —2-—FFEHE 152
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

12 DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS 12 EERETZEE
Details of the emoluments of directors for the years ended 31 HE2022F k2021 F12A31 B ILFE
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: BEEZMESFBET
2022
2022
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in Kind bonuses contributions 2022 Total
gé 2
EEHe REEEA WERAL BARGTEMRR 20225485
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TR AR®FR ARET ARETR
Directors: S - - - - -
Mr Fu Bin R EE - - - - -
Mr Qian Zhijia BaxEE - - - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong B&Ers o - - - -
Mr Gao Xiangzhong mIRR A (R20225
(appointed as Executive TH8ARZEHTE
Director on 8 July 2022) %) - - - - -
Mr Miao Yong (resigned BBEKE(R202254
on 22 April 2022) A22BEHT) - - - - -
Dr Liu Xiao Feng 2B EET 260 - - - 260
Mr Sun Patrick FTEELE 260 - - - 260
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper B4R %4 260 - - - 260
780 - - - 780
2021
20215
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions 2021 Total
ot 2
Tk RREERH BT RIKGHEER 2021585t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT AEBTT AREFTL AREFTL
Directors: EE N
Mr Fu Bin DhEY % - - = = =
Mr Qian Zhijia BaRitE - - - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong BEELE - - - - -
Mr Miao Yong BELE - - - = =
Dr Liu Xiao Feng L E L 251 - _ _ 51
Mr Sun Patrick FRERE 251 - - - 251
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper BEM L 251 = = = 251
753 - - - 753
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

12 DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

In addition to the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, certain
directors of the Company receive emoluments from other CNPC
group companies they are employed to. No apportionment has
been made as the directors consider that it is impracticable to
apportion this amount between their services to the Group and
their services to other CNPC group companies.

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year including zero (2021: zero) director whose
emolument is reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid or payable to the remaining five (2021: five)
individuals during the year are as follows:

12 EERETZIME(E)

(R EX BB RFHMIN - ARRET
EETRERBEMPREBE QR
B - AREERANREHAEE
) AR %5 17 2 S EL A o Op R B X R O AR
Bz BEZSBIYER - R &
ho# -

AEEAEBRRAEESHEALTBES
H(2021F : ER)EE  HEZMS
EREMRSHTH R o FRI A RERN
FHRTRA( 2021F : AL) A2
BemT

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT T AREFIT
Salaries and other emoluments FHehEMme 4,730 4,688
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL - =
Retirement scheme contributions RORETEIE RN 421 454
5,151 5,142

The emoluments fell within the & NF T g E: Number of Individuals

following band:

EVIPN 1

Below HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

1,000,000/ 7T LA T
1,000,001/ 7t £ 1,500,000/ 7T 3
1,500,001 7c £ 2,000,000/ 7T =
3,000,00178 7T 23,500,000/ 7T =
3,500,00178 7T 24,000,000/ 7T = =

—_ W =

None of the Directors has waived their remuneration during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did
not incur any severance payment to any director for loss of
office or any payment as inducement to any director to join the
Company (2021: Nil).

HZE2022F12A31HILFE » iES
HREERS (20214F : £) o

HZE2022F12A31BILFE - AA A
WEREAEERBRM I TERERE
MERRIBEEREMEZMARRRZ
18 (20214 : £8)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13 FAEHER

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREBET ARBBHET
Current tax BUEA T 18
- PRC — A 2,782 4,131
- Overseas — /&I 204 102
2,986 4,233
Under-provision in respect of prior BAEFEREBETE
years = 15
Deferred tax (Note 31(b)) JEFEBLIE (M 531 (b)) 203 213
3,189 4,461
Income tax expense attributable to LA T & EFTEEF EIERY
profit from: RSB & R:
- continuing operations — BB ER 3,189 2,698
- discontinued operations —BERIERFEEEETS - 1,763

In accordance with the relevant Mainland China income tax rules
and regulations, the Mainland China corporate income tax rate
applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China
is principally 25% (2021: 25%). The operations of the Group
in certain regions in the Mainland China are qualified for tax
incentives in the form of a preferential income tax rates ranging
from 15% to 20% (2021: 15% to 20%).

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the Group
has no assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the year (2021: Nil).

Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated relevant assessable profit for the year at the applicable
rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.
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20%) °
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13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 13

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

FrismiBER (&)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax expense differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the corporate
income tax rate in the Mainland China applicable to the Group
as follows:

REEBRATIS B E M A M 2 Bk %
REBRNARE 2 PBEAMERMEHR
PR ECEREBIERNT

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREBER AREBET
Profit before income tax expense U TNEEWRFTEHE A

from gl

— continuing operations —HEEER 11,392 10,576

— discontinued operations —ERIEREEEER - 20,222
Profit before income tax expense BET1STRE A& 11,392 30,798
Tax calculated at a tax rate of BHRE25% (20214F :

25% (2021: 25%) 25%) FtEZMIA 2,848 7,700
Under-provision in prior years BAEFEREDTT - 15
Effect of different tax rates MEEZR o2& (80) (3,393)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax AU A Z FIFEFE (161) (76)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR ST H 2 FFE &

for tax purposes 296 168
Tax effect of share of profits less FEMREE 2 N RLEFRBEZ

losses of associates g2 (94) (153)
Tax effect of share of profits less e ERERNRERZ

losses of joint ventures Cihyig T (79) (92)
Tax effect of deferred tax not RERELETIB 2 B2

recognised 164 71
Tax effect of withholding tax on B EWAR B 2 B 2

dividends received or receivable Mg e 295 221
Income tax expense Frisfi s i 3,189 4,461

The income tax rate used in the calculation above is the Mainland
China tax rate which is the jurisdiction where the operations of
the Group are substantially based.

ERABMAZABHRE ST EANM
MK PEAMSANEEEBEXHGEE

P2 RDEE B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

14 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)  The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
of approximately RMB5,228 million respectively (2021:
from continuing and discontinued operations RMB5,141
million and RMB17,875 million), and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended
31 December 2022 of approximately 8,659 million shares
(2021: 8,659 million shares).

(b)  Diluted earnings per share from continuing and discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
are the same as the basic earnings per share as there were
no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued.

15 DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

() Dividends proposed to shareholders of the

14 BREAXAREEERF

(@ FEKEEBHESRERENTY
BBEARARREEANEE 2 &
R AR5 2287H & r(2021
F o REBERERIFELCEER
DAARES141BETEAR
17,875B&E T + AREE2022
F12AMAEFEEBITERR
IRE 848,659 F & M (2021
F :8,659FBR)FTE -

by BHRIUEEBEHE S RTL B
f% - tE 2 20224F 2021 F 12
A31BLEFEZHERDKRILER
BREEBFHOREERNNESG
MEARZBFIERE o

15 AQTRRELERE

() ANEEERFADT
)

Company attributable to the year B2
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREBER AREBETT
Proposed final dividend RABIRERELEIKZ
attributable to shareholders of 2022 R HIfR B
the Company for 2022 (note (a)) (Fff5E(a)) 2,198 —
Final dividend attributable to A TIRRIEGE202146
shareholders of the Company REARR B (FftaE (b))
for 2021 (note (b)) - 1,799

Notes:

(a) At the meeting on 28 March 2023, the Board of Directors
proposed final dividend attributable to shareholders of the
Company in respect of 2022 of RMB25.39 cents per share
amounting to a total of approximately RMB2,198 million. The
amount is based on approximately 8,659 million shares in issue
as at 28 March 2023. The consolidated financial statements
do not reflect this dividend payable as the final dividend was
proposed after the date of the statement of financial position
and will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of
retained earnings in the year ending 31 December 2023 when
it is approved at the 2023 Annual General Meeting.

(b) Final dividend attributable to shareholders of the Company in
respect of 2021 of RMB20.78 cents per share amounting to a
total of approximately RMB1,799 million was approved by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting on 25 May 2022.
The amount is based on approximately 8,659 million shares in
issue as at 29 March 2022 which was paid on 14 July 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

15 DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF 15 ZAXQTIREELIRE (L)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(i) Dividends payable to shareholders of the (i) L—BBFEERAERRD
Company attributable to the previous financial SR RAIIG B (RAFE
year, approved and paid during the year R X 4F)

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’ million RMB" million

AR®EBEER AREBET

Final dividend in respect of B ERFERARBRE

the previous financial year, (RAFEHER )

approved and paid during

the year 1,799 1,819
Special dividend in respect of B FEENRERIRE

the previous financial year, (RAFEHER )

approved and paid during

the year

- 18,501

=
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 M% - BERRE

Leasehold Equipment
land leased ~ Oil and gas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings  for own use properties pipelines machinery vehicles Others in progress Total
HENEER  BRRXAR
: 2 ) ) N XRREE  REREE RE Hth ERIR -t
RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARBEER ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARWEER ARYEER ARWEER ARMEER
Cost K&

Balances at 1 January 2021 2021 F1 A 1B KR 5,550 4,266 11,145 229 65,730 2,352 3,550 17,155 109,977
Currency translation differences ~ E%ERZHE ¥ - (869) - (26) 6] (1) 8 (909)
Additions B 103 340 232 - 72 53 128 5,036 5,964

Acquisition through business FRERAMETIE
combination 108 180 - - 1,692 4 2 - 1,986
Disposals HE (187) (129) (19) = @17 (453) (284) (284) (2,267)
Transfers 3 279 (1) 32 12 6,730 = 65 (7,107) =
Reclassification BHAE 38 (12) 14 - (68) (1) 29 - -
Balances at 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31R &4 5,889 4,640 10,535 241 73213 1,952 3,489 14,792 114,751
Balances at 1 January 2022 #2025 1 1B 5,889 4,640 10,535 241 73213 1,952 3,489 14,792 114,751
Currency tranlation differences ~ E¥ERZ%E 7 1 177 - 1 7 2 3 198
Additions HE 288 332 65 - 1,129 196 m 4,078 6,165

Acquisition through business BERERARETIE
combination 14 - - - 326 1 - - 341
Disposals e (206) (95) (795) - (1,366) (439) (132 (197) (3,230)
Transfers EL (941) - - (241) 5,916 - 633 (5,367) -
Reclassflication Epr 12 ) 1 - (42) - 31 - -
Balances at 31 December 2022 202212531 A ke 5,063 4,876 9,983 - 79,177 1,117 4,100 13,309 118,225
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

16 =% - BFENREE)

Leasehold Equipment
land leased  Oil and gas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings  for own use properties pipelines machinery vehicles Others in progress Total
HENEER BRRXAR

| £ 2HELH NE  RRREE  RERES RE Hiy ERIR ag
RMB' million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREEER ARMEER AREER AREEER ARYEER ARYEER ARMEERT AR%EER ARYEER

Accumulated Depreciation and 3t ERE

Impairment
Balance at 1 January 2021 202151 1R &S 1,621 155 10,208 61 23,999 2,008 1,738 2,310 42,100
Currency translation differences ~ EHERZE (1) - (842) - (19 2 (1) - (865)
Charge for the year FEERM 369 177 336 8 3,367 17 173 = 4,547
Disposals het (102) (31) (12) = (203) (418) (136) @ (904)
Impairment HE 2 - - - 26 - 7 124 159
Reclassification BHHE 162 9 6) - (351) 13 191 - -
Balances at 31 December 2021 H2021612A31R &4 2,051 292 9,684 69 26,819 1,718 1,972 2,432 45,037
Balances at 1 January 2022 1202261 A1B#EH 2,061 292 9,684 69 26,819 1,718 1,972 2,432 45,087
Currency translation differences ~ E%ERZHE 5 - 158 - 1 6 2 - 172
Charge for the year REEXM 512 186 460 9 3,414 64 152 - 4,797
Disposals HE (248) (38) (741) - (195) (439) - (154) (1,815)
Impairment HE 37 31 - - 39 - 23 370 500
Reclassfiication BHSE (423) 2 - (18) 489 = 10 - -
Balances at 31 December 2022 202261231 B &R 1,934 473 9,561 - 30,567 1,349 2,159 2,648 48,691
Net book value: RERE:

Balances at 31 December 2022 202212531 A& 3,129 4,403 422 - 48,610 368 1,941 10,661 69,534
Balances at 31 December 2021 2021512A31 B 3,838 4,348 851 172 46,394 234 1,517 12,360 69,714
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022412 A31H It F[E

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
The buildings of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.

Other assets mainly comprises of containers, roads, bridges
and others.

Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment are situated
on leasehold land in the PRC which was granted for use by the
relevant government authorities to the Group at nil consideration
with no specific terms of usage.

As at 31 December 2022, certain property, plant and equipment
of the Group amounting to RMB958 million (2021: RMB1,025
million) were pledged to banks for loan facilities granted to the
Group.

Uncertainty in future LNG prices, production costs, changes in
operating conditions and economic outlook gave rise to possible
indicators that the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment attributable to the LNG processing plants as at 31
December 2022 might be impaired. Each LNG processing plant
operated by the Group has been identified as a separate cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) for impairment assessment purposes.
The Group has conducted impairment tests and the recoverable
amounts are determined using the value in use approach, which
involved significant assumptions such as future LNG prices,
future production costs and discount rates.

As at 31 December 2022, the cost, accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment and net book value of Group’s property,
plant and equipment relating to the Group’s LNG processing
plants were RMB14,601 million, RMB3,238 million, RMB4,314
million and RMB7,049 million, respectively (2021: RMB14,602
million, RMB2,859 million, RMB4,011 million and RMB7,732
million, respectively). As at 31 December 2022, RMB492 million
impairment was recognised and RMB189 million reversal of
impairment was recognised to LNG processing plants. (No
impairment nor reversal of impairment was recognised to LNG
processing plants for the year ended 31 December 2021.)

Discounted cash flow was used in value in use calculation of
the LNG processing plants. Future cash flows were discounted
using pre-tax discount rates ranging from 12.88% to 16.81%
for the current year (2021: 11.46% to 15.98%).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 16 1% - MERRE (&)
Right-of-use assets FREEE
The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right-of-use NTAREEZBBEERNEID 2E
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: RS EREFEST
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
2022%F12H31H 2021F12A31H
Notes RMB’ million RMB’ million
B 5 AREEER ARBBHET
Buildings BgF () 403 382
Leasehold land leased for own FEUEERZAE T
use (i) 4,403 4,348
Equipment and machinery R M 2R (ifi) 156 699
Motor vehicles RE 10 10
Others HihIg B 122 64
5,094 5,503
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 16 %1% - BMERRE (&)

Right-of-use assets FEREEE(E)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised N EREREERE I NIEE 2
in profit or loss is as follows: DITT -
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million

ARBEET ARBBET

Continuing operations BHEKSEXER
Depreciation charge of right-of-use LAEBEERMNE D 2 E A
assets by class of underlying asset: BEFESL

Buildings g¥ 195 182

Leasehold land leased for own use MENEERZHEE T 186 178

Equipment and machinery S 2R 41 69

Motor vehicles B 7 5

Others H 16 11
445 445

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 10) HEBEMNE (FE10) 35 29

Expense relating to short-term leases  E2%E B E#ERE 2 X 1 470 388
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were RMB666
million (2021: RMB795 million). No right-of-use assets (2021:
RMB212 million) was acquired thought business combination
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Details of total cash outflows for leases is set out in Notes 26(c).

(7

(i)

(i)

Buildings

The Group has obtained the right to use buildings as its
warehouses and offices through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 10 years.

Leasehold land leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use of certain leasehold
land in the PRC. The leases typically run for a period of
10 to 50 years.

Equipment and machinery

The Group leases equipment and machinery under leases
expiring from 16 to 20 years. Some leases include an
option to purchase the leased equipment at the end of the
lease term at a price deemed to be a bargain purchase
option.

16 =% - BFENREE)
EHEEE(H)

FA - FHEEEANEBARKEGC6H
Br(2021F : ARK75H5ET) ° B
F2022F 12 A31HILERE Y EFBE
BAMESR(2021F : ARE212HE
TC)EFRAEEE o

MEREREATE 2 FBFEHI T
26(c) °

(i)

(il

(i)

= A,
]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

17 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

There is no individually material associate which significantly
affects the results and net assets of the Group at 31 December

2022.

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

17 REEQTIZIRE

REAZE -

WEERBER B2 RS AEER

2022F 12 A3 1B £ EREEFEE

BRI TER 2B ZERB 2 AHER

material:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AR¥KBEER ARBEETT
Aggregate carrying amount of BRI TEE ZBE QTR
individually immaterial associates in RE SRR BRREEE
the consolidated financial statements 7,909 7,248
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REBEEIHZEHE AR
share of those associates’ ZIBEER
Profit from continuing operations REEE TSR A 525 874
Other comprehensive income B T 8 (17)
Total comprehensive income FHEWE R 533 857
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18 REBELEZRE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREBET AREBHETT
Share of net assets EHEEFE 6,016 5,740
Loan to a joint venture mMEETERTER 40 37
6,056 5,777

Loan to a joint venture is unsecured, interest-fee and not

repayable within one year.

There is no individually material joint venture which significantly
affects the results and net assets of the Group at 31 December

2022.

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually

AAELERHERSELR - BN

FOE—FAREE -

VEEHNBEEBEZAEPEHAERR
2022F 12 A1 B v ¥EREEFEE

REATE -

BERTEERELRZAHER

material:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARKBEER AREBETT
Aggregate carrying amount of BRI TEE 2 & EBERIRE
individually immaterial joint ventures Wk 2 BREE
in the consolidated financial
statements 6,056 5,777
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REBEELEZEEELEL
share of those joint ventures’ BEE
— Profit from continuing operations — B EER R 467 482
— Other comprehensive income —Hap e mkE 119 (29)
— Total comprehensive income —2HREEBRE 586 453
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 REATZIRE
Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 38. EBAXTEWB AR ZFIBEENMIFESS -
The following tables list out the information related to PetroChina —IT%%ZV"J B A ‘Iﬁ}ﬁftﬂi%ﬁﬁlﬁ
Jiangsu LNG Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu LNG”) which is a subsidiary of NEl([VIELNG]) 2 1B E R - Z A A
the Group which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). RASEEAEARIE TSI R FEE
The summarised financial information presented below represents HlEEZE DB AR « LTATE%Z
the amounts of NCI portion before any inter-company elimination. B 75 B R E 45 AT A BB $E AT 3E

PHIERRR D SR

Jiangsu LNG
STELNG
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million

AR®EBEER ARBBET

NCI percentage FEEHIMEE B DT 45% 45%
Current assets MENE E 3,333 1,981
Non-current assets EMBEE 4,398 4,731
Current liabilities mENBE (1,104) (356)
Non-current liabilities JEmBAE (117) (106)
Net assets BEFE 6,510 6,250
Carrying amount of NCI FERE R S AR E(E 2,930 2,813
Revenue WA 3,116 2,984
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 A5 Fll & & T Uk #5 4858

for the year 1,959 1,818
Profit allocated to NCI val Rt il e £l 882 818
Dividend paid to NCI O S S A2t IS, 720 540

Cash flows generated from operating K& EBHEZETRE

activities 1,812 2,063
Cash flows used in investing activites REXEMAZEREERE (1,048) (865)
Cash flows used in financing activities EEEMAZERERE (764) (1,200)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

20 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20 B EE
The intangible assets mainly comprise goodwill, contract BREEXTEPRERE  SRBE -
relationships, franchised rights and computer software costs. AR BEREGREN  BEEECE
The movements in intangible assets are as follows: AT
2022 2021
2022% 20216
Goodwill Others Total Goodwill Others Total
BE Hith @t HE Htty w@at

RMB’ million ~ RMB’ million ~ RMB’ million ~ RMB' milion ~ RMB’ milion  RMB' million
ARBEER AR®EER ARBEER AR¥ESER AREESR ARKESR

At 1 January M AR 567 1,389 1,956 493 1,061 1,554
Additions i = 66 66 = 406 406
Currency translation differences &#[E 5 =48 - 1 1 = = =
Acquisition through business B BEHA GHET

combination (note (i) ek (BHEE() 6 - 6 74 = 74
Disposal HE (58) 32 (90) - © ©
Amortisation for the year AEEHH - (90) (90) - (76) (76)
At 31 December MM2A318 515 1,334 1,849 567 1,389 1,956
()  The additions of goodwill were mainly due to the Group’s () BEEREIZHREIEEXRAR

acquisition transactions of natural gas sales segment. HERROWERZS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21 BAFEFAHMEEURES
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ZEMBEE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREEETR AREGET
Equity securities designated at EEREBEATFEFAREMEE
FVOCI: WEset = 2 BARE 5
— Listed in Australia —FORAF T ETh 22 16
— Listed in Hong Kong —REEL™ 3 4
— Listed in the Mainland China — B KR T 251 534
— Unlisted in the Mainland China — A B AREIE ET 43 10
319 564

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income in the consolidated
statement of financial position by the measurement hierarchy
are set out in Note 4.3(a).

The Group designated financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income at FVOCI, as the investments are held
for strategic purposes.

No dividends were received on these investments during the
year (2021: Nil). Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income of RMB238 million (2021:
Gain RMB270 million), net of tax of RMB33 million (2021: RMB45
million) was recognised in other comprehensive income during
the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 22 HERBNEE
Other non-current assets mainly comprise prepaid construction HERBpEEFTERERNEERK
costs. K o
INVENTORIES 23 #FE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREEER ARBEHETT
Natural gas KRR, 1,040 997
Crude oil and others J5R /R K E b 41 233
1,081 1,230
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24 FEURBRER
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARBEBER AREBETT
Accounts Receivable JrE I BR X 3,674 3,451
Loss allowance BB (787) (723)
2,887 2,728
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24 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 24 FEWBREX(4E)
Ageing analysis RS
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of BEREHR - BURERF (R EER
accounts receivable, based on the invoice date and net of loss BIREEQHR I RESTTOT

allowance, is as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million

ARBEET ARBBET

Within 3 months =EALA 2,080 1,365
Between 3 to 6 months —EAZEXNBEAA 96 256
Between 6 to 12 months NMEAE+TZEARA 108 253
Over 12 months TEAALE 603 854

2,887 2,728
The Group’s revenue from rendering of terminal services and RNEE B RN R &R EHE
sales of crude oil are generally collectable within a period ranging WA —MBREZHERLEE0RE90H
from 30 to 90 days from the invoice date while the sales of HEWE - MEERARUBRE TN
natural gas are made in cash or on credit terms no more than HEEHTEBB0H - AEEEFEER
90 days. Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit R RERKERES 2 EERR RTEL
risk and expected credit loss arising from accounts receivable EEEBZE—FFE - HINHE
are set out in Note 4.1(b). 41(b) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

25 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 25 HENRREMBHEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREBHETT AREBETT
Receivable relating to disposal  FEUH & 48 B4R R B
group = 4,053
Prepayments AR 4,643 3,848
Other receivables, net of credit HithfEUFRIE - IR EE
losses E5ia1& 1,110 1,905
Contract assets aREE 1,008 166
Amounts due from an JE U b R R A B FROB
intermediate holding company 268 472
Loan to a joint venture MEBETERHER - 200
Loans to third parties ME=FREER 69 23
Dividends receivable FEYR B, 96 98
Value-added tax recoverable AT UL B (E R 454 1,784
Income tax recoverable AT B FTIS 17 17
Other current assets HMns&EE 225 120
7,890 12,686

FEUG P REHERE A R FIE A A R 268 R
Br(2021%F : ARB4AT2EETT) ' B
HR—FREE - AEERKIEFHE
1.80% (20214 : FF|E1.80%)51 8 °

The amounts due from an intermediate holding company of
RMB268 million (2021: RMB472 million) are expected to be
settled within one year, and are unsecured and interest-bearing
at 1.80% per annum (2021: 1.80% per annum).
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26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 MERBEELEEIEH

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Q)EQ&EQ%EEE@

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million

ARBEER AREBET

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEERS 20,030 12,130
Short-term bank deposits EHAIRTTIERK 12 16,364
Time deposits with maturities FIEEBBE=EA 2 EH

over three months T 19,439 =
Cash and cash equivalents and R&NRESHEEE LEH

time deposits e 39,481 28,494
Less: time deposits with B BEBEBAE=@MAZE

maturities over three months B (19,439) =
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEIER 20,042 28,494

As at 31 December 2022, cash at bank and bank deposits
carried interest at prevailing weighted average market rate
of 0.18% per annum (2021: 0.63% per annum).

Included in bank deposits, cash at bank and on hand
are amounts of approximately RMB19,213 million (2021:
RMB11,953 million) denominated in RMB which are
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these
RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and
the remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC Government.
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of bank deposits, cash at bank and
at hand are denominated in the following currencies:

26 ReERALFEERH)

(@)

HeRASEEERE
% (1)

RITHFER - RORFBEAESHOR
EEATIEEIE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million

ARBEET ARBBET

RMB AR 38,172 27,603
US Dollar ETT 873 476
Thai Baht 7N 392 335
HK Dollar BT 34 40
Other Hith 10 40
Cash and cash equivalents and IR& MRS HEEB K

time deposits TEHTF K 39,481 28,494

=
==
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

26 RERFALFEERE)

(b)

MEEMMELENER
£ AR

TRFLAEEREETHMES
MAEEEY  BRASIIFRE
2y - MERBMEENEER
AEEGARERERTEESR
EBRENEARAIRKRAECRER
DHEARERDMEENEREESR
EMAILE -

Lease Dividend
Borrowings liabilities payables Total
& HEEE ERRE a3t
RMB’ million  RMB’ million ~ RMB’ million ~ RMB’ million
AREEEBT ARBEER ARBEER ARKEER
At1danuary2022  R02FAIE 24,465 n2 405 25,582
Changes from financing cash flows: MERTREAE:
Increase in borrowings EEEm 8,438 - - 8,438
Repayment of borrowings BREE (8,382) - - (8,382)
Capital element of lease rentals paid EEERSAE ) - (361) - (361)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BRAERSHSHH - (35) = (39)
Interest paid BRFE (894) - - (894)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ ERARAIRERE - - (1,799) (1,799)
Other dividends paid EREMRE - - (1,905) (1,905)
Total changes from financing cashflows  MARSHEREER | (639) 396) (8,704 (4,938)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgEHs 52 521 - - 521
Other changes: A2
Net changes in lease liabiliies during the year ~ EREEREFE - 419 - 419
Interest expenses SR 933 35 - 968
Dividends to shareholders of the Company ARARERE - - 1,799 1,799
Dividends to non-controlling interests FEREIEERRE - - 1,633 1,633
Totalotherchanges . Ht@8#% 938 454 3432 4819
At 31 December 2022 2022512318 25,081 770 133 25,984
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 26 MERBELEEEH(E)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BUEFEEFIEENERE
financing activities (Continued) HER(4E)
Lease Dividend
Borrowings liabilities payables Total
BE HESR ERRE @3t
RMB’ million  RMB’ million ~ RMB’ million ~ RMB’ million
AE¥EEnr AR¥EEn AR¥EER AR¥EER
At1Jdanuary202t ] ROAFIAIR 21,673 664 4% 28772
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSHERD:
Increase in borrowings fEEEM 8,020 - - 8,020
Repayment of borrowings BRfEE (9.621) = = (9,621)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERREREAE SR - (309) - (309)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ERREREMEHH = (3) - (33)
Interest paid BRFHE (1,002) - - (1,002)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company B ARAIREMR S - - (20,320) (20,320)
Other dividends paid EHEMRS - - (3,869) 13,369)
Total changes from financing cashflows ~ BERSAERBAE (2,603 842 (24,189 (27,139
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgHsHE (186) = = (186)
Other changes: b5
Net changes in lease liabiliies during the year ~ FREEREFET - 361 - 361
Interest expenses MERx 1,081 29 = 1,110
Dividends to shareholders of the Company RARRRRE - - 20,320 20,320
Dividends to non-controlling interests SEERIMERRS - - 3,838 3,838
Reversal of disposal group classified as held-for ~ BEENNEAHELE
sale at beginning of the year HERS 6,500 37 = 6,537
Disposal of discontinued operations REDRIHELEEH (8,000) (37) - (8,087)
Total other changes 3 sames (419 390 24,158 2129
At 31 December 2021 2021124317 24,465 712 405 25,582
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26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 26 ReRFALFEHEA (F)
(c) Total cash outflows for leases (co HERSRHAE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash REEFAGERERERZE
flows for leases comprise the following: HEEUATEA :
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREBEER AREBET
Within operating cash flows KEREMER 436 400
Within investing cash flows KERERESP 247 441
Within financing cash flows BMERSRESP 396 221
1,079 1,062
These amounts relate to the following: ZETCRETYRIAARA
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREBER AREBETT
Lease rentals paid BNAERS 832 621
Additions of leasehold lands AREHEFERZHEELH
leased for own use 247 441
1,079 1,062
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 BA

Number of Nominal value of
ordinary shares ordinary shares

million HK$’million
ZBERER ZEREE
BER BEAT
Authorised: ERE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each #HXE{E0.018 T2 ZiER
At 1 January 2021, M2021F1 18 -
31 December 2021, 2021F12H31H -
1 January 2022 and 2022118 &
31 December 2022 2022F 12 A31H 16,000 160
Number of Nominal value of
ordinary shares ordinary shares
million RMB’ million
ZBRREAR ZEREE
BER AR¥BEER
Issued and fully paid: ERITREBEH (T

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each #A%[E{E0.01ET.2 Zi#K

At 1 January 2021, R2021%F1A1H -
31 December 2021, 2021F12H31H -
1 January 2022 and 2022F1A1B X
31 December 2022 2022F12 H31H 8,659 71
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

28 OTHER RESERVES

(@) Movements in components of other reserves

28 EHitif#E
(a) HithfEEHREE

Group
15H
Fair value
reserve
Share  Contributed Merger (non- Translation Retained
premium surplus reserve  recycling) reserve Others Subtotal earnings Total
AT ERE
(FuEE
KOEE  BERE  AHEE  EER) ERGE 0] Nt REERA a5
RMB' milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB' milion ~ RMB' milion ~ RMB' milion ~ RMB' milion ~ RMB' milion ~ RMB' milion ~ RMB' million
AREEET ARKAET AREAET ARWEET AREEERT AREEER AREAER ARMEER ARMEER
note () note i note (ii) note (iv) note (v) note (vi)
W) LB Wi K i) B
Balances at 31 December 2020 and #2020512A318R
1 January 2021 WA1F1A1B8EH 35,884 109 (23,820) 142 1,122 8,519 21,956 31,557 53513
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENRLE - - - 212 (217) - () 23,016 23,011
Transfer between reserves o - - - - - 566 566 (566) =
Final dividend for 2020 0205 KHRE - - - - - - - (20,320) (20,320)
Disposal of subsidiaries (vi) RERBA) - - 15,120 - 953) (,716) 8,451 (8.451) -
Balances at 31 December 2021 H01E12831 LR 35,884 109 (8,700) 354 (48) 3,369 30,968 25,236 56,204
Balances at 31 December 2021 and H2021512831AR
1 January 2022 N2F1B1AEH 35,884 109 (8,700) 354 (48) 3,369 30,968 25,236 56,204
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EfELEE - - - (184) 156 - (28) 5,208 5,00
Transfer between reserves GREE - - - - - 570 570 (570) -
Final dividend for 2021 WAERGRE - - - - 5 5 5 (1,799) (1,799)
Repurchase from non-controling interests [BEGE % alE - - 2 - - - 2 - 2
Others At o o - - - 230 230 - 230
Balances at 31 December 2022 H2020E12831 AL 35,884 109 (8,698) 170 108 4,169 31,742 28,095 59,837
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28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED) 28 Hih{#EE(4E)
(@) Movements in components of other reserves (a) EiuGEEAREEN(E)
(Continued)
Company
NG
Share  Contributed Retained
premium surplus Subtotal earnings Total
REE EfRs NG REEH a5
RMB’ milion ~ RMB’ million ~ RMB’ milion ~ RMB’ milion ~ RMB’ million
AREBEL ARKAER AREBEET AREAER AREEER
note (i) note (i)
g i3
Balances at 31 December 2020 and R2020512A318 &

1 January 2021 202151 A1 £ 35,884 109 35,993 19,508 55,501
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERGLE - - = 12,254 12,254
Final dividend for 2020 2020 K HRE g - - 003200  (20,320)
Balances at 31 December 2021 2021 E12A31 B LS 35,884 109 35,993 11,442 47 435
Balances at 31 December 2021 and R2021512A318 &

1 January 2022 202251 A1B &84 35,884 109 35,993 11,442 47,435
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENGLE - - - 1,197 1,197
Final dividend for 2021 2021 EKHRE - - - (1,799) (1,799)
Balances at 31 December 2022 2022512831 B &84 35,884 109 35,993 10,840 46,833
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28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of other reserves

Notes:

U

(i)

)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the share premium
account may be applied by the Company in paying up unissued
shares of the Company to be issued to shareholders of the
Company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ net assets value of the subsidiaries
at the date on which they were acquired by the Group and the
amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
considerations and the aggregate share capital of subsidiaries
acquired under business combinations under common control.

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of equity investments designated
as FVOCI that are held at the end of the reporting period.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

Others mainly represent capitalisation of retained earnings by
subsidiaries and the statutory surplus reserves. Pursuant to
the Company Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association and
the resolution of Board of Directors of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the Mainland China, these subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of their respective net profit to
statutory surplus reserves. Appropriation to the statutory
surplus reserves may be ceased when the fund aggregates
to 50% of those subsidiaries’ registered capital. The statutory
surplus reserves may be used to make good previous years’
losses or to increase the capital of those subsidiaries upon
approval of their shareholders’ meeting.

The reclassification between retained earnings and other
accounts of other reserves were the adjustments due to the
disposal of Beijing Pipeline and Dalian LNG.
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28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

(c) Distributability of other reserves

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of other
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company, as calculated under the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 was RMB10,949 million (2021: RMB11,551
million). After the end of the reporting period the Directors
proposed a final dividend of RMB25.39 cents per ordinary
share (2021: Final dividend RMB20.78 cents per ordinary
share), amounting to RMB2,198 million (2021: RMB1,799
million) (Note 15). This dividend has not been recognised
as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

29 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

H itk (4)
(c) AIpiREthfiEfE

20225612 A318 » a[ftAEAR
AEZBRES R EMFERS
BREARE1981F QAR
) A ARE10,949F 80 (2021
F:ARBI1551E8TL) B
WEHKRE  ESEERBRE
FRE BRI AREK25.395 (2021
F EEZEAIRETRER
AR®20787 ) EARK
2198 B E (20215 : AR
1,799B &7r) (MizE15) - ZAR B
REREEBRY R ER A —HARE -

BARMRE AR

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

RMB’ million RMB’ million

ARBEET ARBEETT

Accounts payable (i) FETERFR() 3,112 3,205

Contract liabilities (i) AREE) 12,621 11,984

Salaries and welfare payable e REF 428 400

Accrued expenses FERTRAX 12 12

Dividend payable e B, 133 405

Interest payable FETFIE 170 140
Construction fee and equipment cost 2R E KR A

payables 7,551 7,567

Amounts due to related parties JE 1~ BB 5 R

— Non-controlling interests — I R 1 1

— Others —HA 83 52

Other payables (i) A A SR A i) 3,609 3,501

27,720 27,267
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

29 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 29 FE{ERFREFEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
. . . ; = ®
(i) Ageing analysis of accounts payable () BMRMRZIRE DT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of BEH %f,ﬁ Ko EARFIRER
accounts payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows: REZ BREe D ATEA T -
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREBET AREBET
Within 3 months =@EARN 1,874 2,372
Between 3 to 6 months =BAEXRMREA 164 223
Over 6 months 7NE A E 1,074 610
3,112 3,205
The typical credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. HIBE M2 BRIREEE BO0A -
(i)  Asat 31 December 2022, the Group also had non-current (i) F2022%F12A31H » KEBER

contract liabilities of RMB98 million (2021: RMB232 million)
which were included under non-current other liabilities and

EEIFRBENRBARKEIE
B(2021%F : AR®23258

were expected to be recognised as revenue in over 12 7o) HEFTAERBEMEBER
months but less than 5 years. YHEHARRABA T @A RELD
RAFZIA o

AEEZANABRKEFERER
FZ8% - TPRETFHE © &K
EEZHTRREBRFAFER
ERERRRBLEE  FAR
ﬁ%i%ﬁQMMm%°ﬁ¥m

The Group’s contract liabilities represent primarily advances
received from customers. In certain regions of the PRC,
customers of the Group’s city gas business are required
to use integrated circuit cards and top up in advance
before the balances are being deducted upon usage of

natural gas. Depending on the market conditions and AEBFPEENRR AEERE
the customers’ credit profile, the Group also requires m,\{‘@%%ﬁﬁuuﬁqﬁa BRE
advance from certain customers for sales of other natural FTEFBEENR - ZFEHRKBEF

gas products. These advance payments from customers
are recognised as contract liabilities until the natural gas
products are sold to the customers. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the amount of RMB11,984 million
(2021: RMB10,911 million) recognised in contract liabilities
at beginning of the year has substantially been recognised
as revenue during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

29

(i)  The other payables were mainly retention monies for
construction and VAT element of advance receipts from

customers.

(iv) The Group is a defendant in certain lawsuits as
well as the named party in other proceeding. While
the outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuits or
other proceeding cannot be determined at present,
management believes that any resulting liabilities will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial position
or financial performance of the Group.

B ERM R B B E ()

(i)

(iv)

HitENREZR/TRREES R
BB AIRER AR -

AEEBE TR ZWEREM
RARZIEES - BERBREEE
ERFRREMN  RRFREEHE
AR 2 &R - B EBMREE
MAtELZABETEHAEH
Z IR B B S AR IE R E K
THEE -

BORROWINGS 30 EE
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARMEER ARBEETT
Short-term borrowings — secured (note) SEHIEE —H & (M) - 84
Short-term borrowings — unsecured RHEEE — EIE 2,544 1,825
Current portion of long-term borrowings & 8ifE & 2 BIHAZE 2,743 3,945
e eeemeeemeemeememeemeememeemeememeemaemeeemeemeeemeemeememesmeemeeemaemememeemaememeemeemeeemeemeeeeeeeeerr 5,287 5,854
Long-term borrowings — secured (note) REMEE —FHEM (M) 892 839
Long-term borrowings — unsecured REMEE —EEH 21,645 21,717
Less: Current portion of long-term RRHAGE ZBNEE D
borrowings (2,743) (3,945)
. 19,794 ... 18,611
25,081 24,465

Note: As at 31 December 2022, certain property, plant and equipment of
the Group amounting to RMB958 million (2021: RMB1,025 million)
were pledged to banks for loan facilities granted to the Group (Note

16).

MIEE « A2022% 12 A318 » AEEET &5

= A,
]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U BERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30 BE(H)

MN2022E12 A31 0 » B INETY
FFRE3.66%(20214F : 3.64%) °

The weighted average interest rate for borrowings as of 31
December 2022 is 3.66% per annum (2021: 3.64%).

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

BEZRAERATERHE

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’ million RMB’ million

ARKBEER ARBEETT

RMB AR 18,068 18,048
US dollar ETT 6,951 6,358
Hong Kong dollar BT = -
Japanese yen = 5 12
Euro BLTT 57 47
25,081 24,465

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the borrowings of the
Group were repayable as follows:

R2022F K2021%12A31H » K&EH
ZEEERINTERER

Bank loans Loans other than bank loans

BITER REBITERUIIZER
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 20214 20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million ~ RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARBEERT ARKBEET AR¥EER AR%KBER
Within one year —FR 2,395 2,908 2,892 2,946
Between one to two years —Z=ME 2,224 2,054 682 1,863
Between two to five years M Z=HF 3,651 3,326 5,940 4,260
After five years RELAE 3,110 3,480 4,187 3,628
11,380 11,768 13,701 12,697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30 EE(E)
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRHAFLAEB ZEBEEZHRTANTE
maturity for its borrowings. The information presented is B - FTIE2FERTIAAEBEAS 2 &
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be FHHEREE WRTAFTRBESRE
required to pay and represents the undiscounted cash flow (BfREAeRFIE):

including principal and interest:

Bank loans Loans other than bank loans
RITER BREBITERUIZER

2022 2021 2022 2021

20224 20214 20224 20214

RMB’ million ~ RMB’ milion  RMB’ million ~ RMB' million
ARBEET ARKEELT ARWEER ARBEER

Within one year —ER 2,774 3,205 3,108 3,124

Between one to two
years —EWF 2,666 2,381 1,636 2,150
Between two to five years WM Z A4 3,972 3,914 6,024 4,794
After five years FFLAE 3,692 4,182 4,462 3,931
13,104 13,682 15,230 13,999
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

e MBI RP 2FEH

(@) ERSEIANRRHZE
HABIAS

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million

AR®EBEER AREBET

Tax payables in respect B ARRUTERERN
of subsidiaries in: FiIE:
- the PRC —rh 553 638
- Peru —ME 41 -
— Thailand — R 29 10
623 648
Withholding tax on dividend MR R IR S 2 TR
distributed by the subsidiaries - —
623 648

As at 31 December 2022, the Group also had income
tax recoverable of RMB17 million (2021: RMB17 million)
which were included under “prepayments and other current
assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31 &8 BRRTRDZFAEH

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) (&)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) BERZEBENREE
REaE:
The movements in the deferred taxation account are as IRIEFTAR B A EET ¢
follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB' million

ARBEER AREBET

At beginning of the year REA (556) (144)
Currency translation differences S E N =% (4) 3
Acquisitions through business FBREREOHETIEE

combination (13) (157)
Transfer to disposal group ERESHEAREHE T

classified as held-for-sale S48 7 - =
Charged to the consolidated N SR e LRl 5S

profit or loss (203) (213)
Credited to other comprehensive R Ef2EWHE R

income 33 (45)
At end of the year RER (743) (556)
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31

(b)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

31

SRHRARP ZHAEH

nT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) (48)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) BIERZEZEHRIESE
(Continued) KR&af&E (i)
Deferred tax balances are attributable to the following BEETIBESREBENATIER -
items:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARBEET ARBEETT
Deferred tax assets: B IEE E:
Depreciation of property, plant ~ ¥1% - BE MR EITE
and equipment 333 478
Impairment of receivables YR FORE 152 73
Tax losses HIBEE 433 633
Others HAth 280 20
Total deferred tax assets BT TRE ERRE 1,198 1,204
Set off iy (83) -
Net deferred tax assets RIEF TR & B SR 1,115 1,204
Deferred tax liabilities: RERIBERE:
Depreciation of property, plant YE - BELREITE
and equipment 793 842
Undistributed profits of PRC and B K /8N B A 7]
overseas subsidiaries, and BERNAIREEDLERN
associate and joint ventures FvaN il 650 260
Revaluation surplus from ¥BEHEENEGHAS
business combination 313 579
Others HAth 185 79
Total deferred tax liabilities BT B FERE 1,941 1,760
Set off i (83) -
Net deferred tax liabilities RIER IR 8 E 55 1,858 1,760

As at 31 December 2022, certain subsidiaries of the
Company did not recognise deferred tax asset of deductible
tax losses carried forward of RMB1,040 million (2021:

RMB688 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments

The Group did not have material capital commitments as at
31 December 2022.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

CNPGC, the controlling shareholder of the Company, is a
state- controlled enterprise directly controlled by the PRC
government. Related parties include CNPC and its subsidiaries
(together, the “CNPC Group”), other state-owned enterprises
and their subsidiaries which the PRC government has control,
joint control or significant influence over, the entities which the
Group is able to control, jointly control or exercise significant
influence over, key management personnel of the Group and
CNPC Group and their close family members and any entity,
of any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group’s parent.

In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the following is a
summary of significant related party transactions entered into
in the ordinary course of business in both continuing and
discontinued operations between the Group and its related
parties during the years and balances arising from related
party transactions at the end of the years indicated below:

(@) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures

The Group has extensive transactions with other
companies in the CNPC Group. Due to these
relationships, it is possible that the terms of the
transactions between the Group and other members of
the CNPC Group are not the same as those that would
result from transactions with other related parties or
wholly unrelated parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(@) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The principal related party transactions with the CNPC
Group and associates and joint ventures of the Group,
which were carried out in the ordinary course of
business, are as follows:

0

The Group entered into (i) the Leng Jiapu Contract
with the CNPC Group in 1997 and (ii) certain
supplemental agreements and master agreements,
including master agreement on 11 September
2020 for connected transactions for the three years
ending 31 December 2023, for the purpose of
renewing the terms of the previously signed master
agreement and supplemental agreements.

Under the Leng Jiapu Contract and the master
agreement, a framework for a range of products
and services to be procured from the CNPC Group
to the Group and vice versa including oil and gas
products, general products and services, financial
services and rental services is provided.

- Provision of products by the CNPC Group
to the Group amounted to approximately
RMB109,667 million (2021: RMB73,193
million) for the year ended 31 December
2022.

- Provision of services by the CNPC Group
to the Group amounted to approximately
RMB4,580 million (2021: RMB4,670 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(@) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures (Continued)

0

(Continued)

= Provision of products by the Group to the
CNPC Group amounted to approximately
RMB4,572 million (2021: RMB4,447 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

- Provision of services by the Group to the
CNPC Group amounted to approximately
RMB4,478 million (2021: RMB6,891 million),
which mainly includes natural gas pipeline
transmission services and LNG gasification
and unloading services provided by the
Group, for the year ended 31 December
2022.

The Group has entered into agreements for
the sales of natural gas with certain associates
and joint ventures of the Group amounting to
approximately RMB2,709 million and RMB1,532
million (2021: RMB2,209 million and RMB1,539
million), respectively, for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The above transactions in (i) and (ii) constituted
connected transactions in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U BERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 33

(@) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures (Continued)

(i)  As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, amounts due
from and to the CNPC Group, and associates and
joint ventures of the Group, which are unsecured
and interest-free, except borrowings, loans to
an associate, loans to joint ventures and lease
liabilities, are included in the following accounts
captions and summarised as follows:

R 20224 2021412 A 31
B BUEERMTHRBESE
B AEBZBERRRE
BL¥CZHREKREER B
P —fEBE QR « BEXT
REGCXKBAEAREIN A
EEE LR S Bit AT
SEEERITRNT ¢

2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER ARBEEET

Other non-current assets HMIEREEE

Accounts receivable JE U BR FX

Prepayments and other current TEftF R H b REh & &
assets

Accounts payable and accrued EfERF X IEFTAE
liabilities

Borrowings BE

Lease liabilities HEAE

58 66
901 287
315 4,725

5,686 5,603
9,639 8,738
81 121

193 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E2022412 431 H L FfE

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 33 EBARXS(E

(b) Key management compensation by FTEEEEZ#HE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’million RMB’million

ARBBEER AREBET

Salaries and allowances e MiNe 4 2
Retirement benefits — defined RIREF - REHFETE
contribution scheme - -

4 2
(c) Transactions with other state-controlled (c) EpEHMEEEREZ
entities in the PRC X5
Apart from the aforementioned transactions and the BREMZSRERBER - K
transactions with the CNPC Group, and associates and SEBERRRGELEIRS
joint ventures of the Group, the Group has transactions Hh - AEBEEEMEEER 2R
with other state-controlled entities include but not limited SBEETRRY) (HEREE
to (i) sales and purchases of goods and services; (ii) ERERSE WBEEE 5 (i)
purchases of assets; (i) lease of assets; and (iv) bank EEE  RivVVIRTHERKEE -
deposits and borrowings.
These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course ZEXGTRAEE 2 AEER
of the Group’s business. BIEPELT o
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker which is determined by the Group’s most
senior executive management and Executive Directors of the
Company.

The Group organises its business around products and
services. From the products and services perspective, the
Group is engaged in a broad range of oil and gas related
activities and derives its revenue from its four operating
segments: Natural Gas Sales, Sales of LPG, LNG Processing
and Terminal and Exploration and Production.

The Natural Gas Sales segment is engaged in the retail sales,
distribution and trading of various natural gas products. The
Sales of LPG segment is engaged in the wholesales and
retail sales of various LPG products. LNG Processing and
Terminal segment is engaged in the processing, unloading,
storage, gasification and entrucking of LNG. The Exploration
and Production segment is engaged in the exploration,
development, production and sales of crude oil and natural
gas.

The Group’s most senior executive management and
Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on each segment’s profit/(loss) before
income tax expense, and share of profits less losses of
associates and joint ventures (“segment results”).

Segment assets exclude deferred and current taxes, other
financial assets, investments in associates and joint ventures.

Corporate results, net, mainly refers to interest income earned
from cash and cash equivalents, net exchange gains/(losses),
general and administrative expenses and interest expenses
incurred at corporate level.

Corporate assets mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents
held at corporate level.
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 34 HIRER (L&)
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit and Al # 5 R IR i % B E AV E
assets iR

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREBEET ARBBHET
Reportable segment profit A8 5 AR B R
Profit before income tax expense from B L EEHNRTEHE A
continuing operations A g A 11,392 10,576
Income tax expense s i & A (3,189) (2,698)
Profit for the year from continuing FELEEBFNRT
operations 8,203 7,878
Profit for the year from discontinued B AR IFEHEE L E R F NEF
operations - 18,459
Profit for the year F g ) 8,203 26,337
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’ million RMB’ million
AREBET ARBBHET
Reportable segment assets AR EREEE
Continuing operations RHEIRE R
Segment assets RRE E 123,476 117,772
Investment in associates REENF 2" E 7,909 7,248
Investment in joint ventures REBREZIRE 6,056 5,777
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 1,115 1,204
Income tax recoverable Al E FTEEL 17 17
Financial assets at fair value through  EAFEFTAEM 2K E
other comprehensive income LEREE 319 564
Total assets BEE 138,892 132,582

Neither the Group’s revenue is derived from nor the Group’s
non-current assets are located in the place of incorporation of
the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there are no
single customer to whom the revenue exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

AEE 2 WAL IFR B AR R M -
MAKE Z IR EENL IR AR
Al

HE2002F o021 E12A31 B IE4F

B YEREE-FFZBAEREE
WAREE10% °

EREFERAT —s-—F5EHS 108
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35

36

37

ACQUISITIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered
into equity transfer agreements (the “Agreements”) to acquire a
range of 10% to 60% of equity interest in 19 entities at a total
cash consideration of RMB838 million (the “Acquisition”). Upon
the completion of the Acquisition, 15 entities have become
subsidiaries of the Group while 4 entities become the associates
of the Group. There is no individually or accumulatively material
entities which significantly affect the results and net assets of
the Group at 31 December 2022.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company completed
the disposal of the Company’s 60% equity interest in PetroChina
Beijing Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd (“Beijing Pipeline”) and 75% equity
interest in PetroChina Dalian LNG Co., Ltd (“Dalian LNG”) to
China Oil & Gas Piping Network Corporation (“PipeChina”) at
an adjusted amount of RMB38,462 million, based on the equity
transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”) entered on
22 December 2020 between the Company and PipeChina. Gain
on disposal of RMB16,960 million is recorded in the consolidated
financial statements.

Each of Beijing Pipeline, which used to be reported under the
Group’s “Natural Gas Pipeline” segment, and Dalian LNG, which
used to be reported under the Group’s “LLNG Processing and
Terminal” segment, represented a separate major line of the
Group’s business. Consequently, Beijing Pipeline and Dalian
LNG has been presented as discontinued operations in the
consolidated financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 28 March 2023 and will be submitted
to the shareholders for adoption at the 2023 Annual General
Meeting to be held on 31 May 2023 (Wednesday).
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38 XEMBAT

KAR2022F12A31H 2= EME R

38 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which are

limited liability companies at 31 December 2022, are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Particulars of
issued and

paid up capital/
registered capital

A(BREREER

Type of legal entity

Bz FBT

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group

BRITRAER
TR, &/ AEEEEER

WEARAR B 3t dMER 2715 EEBRER B
Natural gas business
RARFEH
PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC RMB8,560 million  Limited liability company 100.00% (note (i))
RRHERMRBRAR f AE#8,560B 87T BREAAT (B EE(0)
Xinjiang Xinjie Co., Ltd. PRC RMB4,370 million  Limited liability company 98.50% (note (i)
MEMERNARAF h ARBA430BET BREEAR (PR EE())
China Natural Gas Co., Ltd. PRC RMB2,082 million  Limited liability company 77. 88% (note (i)
ERRARBNERAA I AR#2,0828 8T AREEAH (B 5E()
CNPC Shennan Qil Technology PRC RMB3,361 million  Limited liability company 100.00% (note (i)

Development Co., Ltd. F AR®3361HET AREEAR (I 5E()
B RE A BRITREERAR
Kunlun Energy Investment Shandong ~ PRC RMB1,700 million  Limited liability company 100.00% (note (i)

Company Limited F AR, 700B8 8T BREEAR (I 5EG)
ERiBRRELR)BRAR
Huagang Gas Group Company Limited PRC RMB1,500 million  Limited liability company 51.00% (note (i)
EEMREEFRAA il AR#1,5008ET BREAEAR (PREE()
Sichuan Chuangang Gas Co., Ltd. PRC RMB900 milion  Limited liability company 51.00% (note (i)
m)IIBERREREERR] HE ARMO00BET BREAEAT (B EE(0)
Jiangsu LNG PRC RMB3,166 milion  Limited liability company 55.00% (note (i)
LELNG f ARH3,166AET BREEAR (PR ()
Notes: Bk -

(i) Shares are held directly by the Company.

() HARBERFARD °
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39 COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 39 D EEHIIFERAE
POSITION
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
12A31H 12A31H
Note RMB’million RMB’million
B 5E ARBEER ARBEET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - BiE MR 2 5
Investments in associates REE AR 2R E 1,469 1,306
Investments in joint ventures REBEL¥EE 973 970
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR 2% E 29,367 29,602
Other non-current assets HidEn#EE 1 -
. 31812 31,883
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other ARREEMRBEE
current assets 3,636 7,032
Cash and cash equivalents RAekReFEEH 19,466 15,952
e 23,102 22,984 _
Total assets HWEE 54,914 54,867
Equity g
Capital and reserves AARRREGBRAR FE
attributable to shareholders
of the Company
Share capital A 27 71 71
Retained earnings BEREF 28 10,840 11,442
Other reserves HAh & 28 35,993 35,993
e 46904 47,506
Liabilities af
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable and ERERRRESAE
accrued liabilities 1,038 980
Income tax payable FERTFTIZ TR 20 20
Lease liabilities HEEE 2 2
1,060 1,002
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COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 39 QEIEEERRF(E
POSITION (CONTINUED)
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
12831H 12A31H
Note RMB’million RMB’million
B 5E AREEHER AREBHESETT
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Long-term borrowings REBEE 6,950 6,358
Lease liabilities HEGE = 1
| 69%0 6,359
Total liabilites i N 8010 7,361
Total equity and liabilities EEREBEHEE 54,914 54,867
Net current assets REEEFE 22,042 21,982
Total assets less current HEERRBERE
liabilities 53,854 53,865

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2022, the Directors consider the parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be PetroChina HK and
CNPC which are incorporated in Hong Kong and established in
the PRC, respectively.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

40 HERRRIZERAL

41

N2022F12A31H - EERANEE
HEBRARRRKRIERALT AT OHE
BRFBRAREE  HRIREBSRFAE
AL o

B E2022F 128318 ILEE
S EME R EMBMELT -
MERRERENTEE

HEZSUBRREMEE S
MAEEBMZIBEEFRNE E£2022F
12A31BIEFEMDARER + IFAREN
EZEMBHREF - ZZBERBEAT
A gL AN E AR 2 185 ©

EREBRERAT —S-—FFEHRE 202
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 4310 ILFfE

41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 4 HE20225F12A31HILFEE
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT S EMAE R ENAVIERT -
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MEARRENTRESZE
DECEMBER 2022 (CONTINUED) (&)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
R B 2%
Mz et EEX

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of 1 January 2023
Accounting Policies
HEGHERE 1R NBFBVBREENBEBHAE2RUERT A 2B K Z 55 ) 20231 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
R GTERIESR(BRIA) Bt a7 #/E 2 ] 202341 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities 1 January 2023
arising from a single transaction
BB ENE12R(BAIRN)HE—XZELZEEKE EIHHHBELFE] 2023F1 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current liabilities 1 January 2024
BEEHERER(ERIR)FERBEE] 202451 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
BRGHERNEVRET RN BESERRE I E ] 20241 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
HFEETENE16R (BTN ERERRZTHEHERE] 20241 A1H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what REER FT AR EE L ENRE
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the REFRHAR 2 TR E - BRIAEER
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of BIRNZEIEE] R EREERE B IR
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated RETSEREATE o

financial statements.
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RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

INFORMATION ON EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION
SEGMENT

In accordance with the Listing Rule 18.18, this section provides
supplemental information on oil and gas producing activities of the
Group.

Proved Oil and Gas Reserve Estimates

The following table sets forth the Company’s estimated proved
developed reserves and proved reserves as at December 2020,
2021 and 2022. The tables are formulated on the basis of reports
prepared by DeGolyer and MacNaughton and Ryder Scott Company,
independent engineering consultancy companies.

ERAMRELEERRZEN

BIE LT HRANE18.181k - NENEHAEBEASE
EmRAEERBNMITER o

PREAH A E G5

TREI ARG R2020F - 2021 4F %2022
FI2AZ A RAD AEFHE RRARE -
ZE RS TR R I8 L T 12 AR 2 8] DeGolyer
and MacNaughton#Ryder Scott Company
A mEMRR -

CRUDE OIL RAR
Proved

developed Proved
reserves reserves
(Estimation) (Estimation)
KA CBHRHFE HAFE
(f&5T) (f&%h)
(million barrels) (million barrels)
(BB®W) (BE®W)
Reserve as at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H Zf#= 40.4 55.1
2020 Revision 2020 (& 5] 9.9 10.7
2020 Production 20205 ES (12.3) (12.3)
Reserve as at 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 A31H 2= 38.0 53.5
2021 Revision 2021F1{&E] 9.5 1.7
2021 Production 2021 FE= (11.9) (11.9)
Reserve as at 31 December 2021 MR2021%F12A31H 2= 35.6 43.3
2022 Revision 2022 (& E] 1.8 3.5
2022 Production D022 EE (11.3) (11.3)
Reserve as at 31 December 2022 R2022F12A31H 2% = 26.1 35.5

ERERERAT —S-—FEEHE 204



RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

NATURAL GAS

KRR
Proved
developed Proved
reserves reserves
(Estimation) (Estimation)
KRPCRHBHE RARE
(f&51) (f&=)

(million cu feet) (million cu feet)

(BBYAR) (BBYAR)

Reserve as at 31 December 2019 MR2019F12A31H Zf#E 143,529.2 156,068.8
2020 Revision 2020F{&5] 5,954.7 9,435.9
2020 Production 2020 ESR (26,121.6) (26,121.6)
Reserve as at 31 December 2020 MR2020F12A31HZHE 123,362.3 139,383.1
2021 Revision 2021 (& 5T (186.7) (5,556.5)
2021 Production 2021FEE (23,627.3) (23,627.3)
Reserve as at 31 December 2021 MR2021F12A31HZfFE 99,548.3 110,199.3
2022 Revision 20224 (8E] 5,494.8 1,068.5
2022 Production 20225 ES (23,282.9) (23,282.9)
Reserve as at 31 December 2022 R2022F 12 A31H 2 f#E 81,760.2 87,984.9
Definition: Bs

The petroleum reserves are classified as follows:

Proved oil and gas reserves — Proved oil and gas reserves are
those quantities of oil and gas, which by analysis of geoscience
and engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty
to be economically producible — from a given date forward, from
known reservoirs, and under existing economic conditions, operating
methods, and government regulations — prior to the time at which
contracts providing the right to operate expire, unless evidence
indicates that renewal is reasonably certain, regardless of whether
deterministic or probabilistic methods are used for the estimation.
The project to extract the hydrocarbons must have commenced or
the operator must be reasonably certain that it will commence the
project within a reasonable time.
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(i)

The areas of the reservoir considered as proved includes:

(A)The area identified by drilling and limited by fluid contracts,
if any, and (B) Adjacent undrilled portions of the reservoir that
can, with reasonable certainty, be judged to be continuous with
it and to contain economically producible oil or gas on the basis
of available geoscience and engineering data.

In the absence of data on fluid contracts, proved quantities in
a reservoir are limited by the lowest known hydrocarbons (LKH)
as seen in a well penetration unless geoscience, engineering, or
performance data and reliable technology establishes a lower
contact with reasonable certainty.

Where direct observation from well penetrations has defined a
highest known oil (HKO) elevation and the potential exists for an
associated gas cap, proved oil reserves may be assigned in the
structurally higher portions of the reservoir only if geoscience,
engineering, or performance data and reliable technology
establish the higher contact with reasonable certainty.

Reserves which can be produced economically through
application of improved recovery techniques (including, but not
limited to, fluid injection) are included in the proved classification
when:

(A)Successful testing by a pilot project in an area of the reservoir
with properties no more favourable than in the reservoir as a
whole, the operation of an installed program in the reservoir or an
analogous reservoir, or other evidence using reliable technology
establishes the reasonable certainty of the engineering analysis
on which the project or program was based; and (B) The project
has been approved for development by all necessary parties and
entities, including governmental entities.

Existing economic conditions include prices and costs at which
economic producibility from a reservoir is to be determined. The
price shall be the average price during the 12-month period
prior to the ending date of the period covered by the report,
determined as an unweighted arithmetic average of the first-
day-of-the-month price for each month within such period,
unless prices are defined by contractual arrangements, excluding
escalations based upon future conditions.

(i)

(iv)

RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION
REEH

AIRAERARRE N R EE

(AEBHEIFE X RETEmEE(E) /i
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AEMTEEAABFERN — L EH
B R 80 R T R SR I o

BERZAEMTEER  BRIEHE - T
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TR A 2EMRNRERHSRE
(LKH)T5E o

EEBHREERBAICHESRSRAS
HMEBRMHKO) REFEEERBARAR
ER - BIRIEHME - TRIKRBEHR
A SHEcAEFEERSE ' &
AIRAA DR #E ] 2k 2 REIBER
=R o
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RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION
B &R

Developed oil and gas reserves — Developed oil and gas reserves
are reserves of any category that can be expected to be recovered:

(0

Through existing wells with existing equipment and operating
methods or in which the cost of the required equipment is
relatively minor compared to the cost of a new well; and

Through installed extraction equipment and infrastructure
operational at the time of the reserves estimate if the extraction
is by means not involving a well.

Undeveloped oil and gas reserves — Undeveloped oil and gas reserves
are reserves of any category that are expected to be recovered from
new wells on undrilled acreage, or from existing wells where a relatively
major expenditure is required from recompletion.

(i)

(i

)

Reserves on undrilled acreage shall be limited to those directly
offsetting development spacing areas that are reasonably
certain of production when drilled, unless evidence using
reliable technology exists that establishes reasonable certainty
of economic producibility at greater distances.

Undrilled locations can be classified as having undeveloped
reserves only if a development plan has been adopted indicating
that they are scheduled to be drilled within five years, unless the
specific circumstances, justify a longer time.

Under no circumstances shall estimates for undeveloped reserves
be attributable to any acreage for which an application of fluid
injection or other improved recovery technique is contemplated,
unless such techniques have been proved effective by actual
projects in the same reservoir or an analogous reservoir, or by
other evidence using reliable technology establishing reasonable
certainty.
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Results of Operations for Exploration and Production

RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

HRELEERREEERS

Segment
RMB’million
ARBEET
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £2022F12A31HILFE
Gross revenue BUTA 2,286
Less: Inter-company adjustment NS I E -
Revenue from external customers REINBERE ZUWA 2,286
Segment results RIREELE 379
Share of profits less losses of: FEAE % FRUES 18
- Associates — B N A 147
- Joint ventures —5&hE 140
Profit before income tax expense BRET1S T E A& A 666
Segment results included: RREE BT
— Interest income —FEHA 12
— Depreciation, depletion and amortisation —TE BREREH (454)
— Interest expenses —FEXZH (1)
- Net exchange gains — [ 5 e B RE 13
RMB’million
ARBEETT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31HILEE
Gross revenue LN 1,732
Less: Inter-company adjustment B ARIETRR -
Revenue from external customers REINBER ZHBA 1,732
Segment results RIRFEE 242
Share of profits less losses of: FEMR R AREE
— Associates — B N A 275
— Joint ventures —EEBhE 179
Profit before income tax expense BRET1S T & A A& A 696
Segment results included: RIBEEBIE -
— Interest income —FEHA 9
- Depreciation, depletion and amortisation —E - BREREHE (345)
— Interest expenses —FEEZH @)
- Net exchange gains — [ W am F R 1

EREFERAT —s-—FEEHS 208



RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration

and Production:

y

MEWRE - BWERREEEE 2K

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration and #)ZUKEE « BNFEBRFHELE 2 RA

Development Activities

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBEETT
The Group REHE
Property acquisition costs I EINGEID N - -
Exploration costs VIR AR - -
Development cost B A AR 113 83
Total Bt 113 83
Equity method investments AR E
Share of costs of property acquisition DB EREI AR
exploration and development of EAYIEREE -
associates and joint ventures BhHR K B AR 647 544
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREFR

Remuneration Committee
Dr Liu Xiao Feng (Chairman)
Mr Sun Patrick

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

Nomination Committee
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman)

Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Mr Sun Patrick

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

Sustainability Committee

Mr Qian Zhijia (Chairman)

Mr Gao Xiangzhong®

Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

Mr Zhong Wenxu (Non-director member)
Mr Miao Yong®@

SOLICITOR
King & Wood Mallesons

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE

39/F., 118 Connaught Road West
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2522 2282

E-mail: info@kunlun.com.hk

Fax: 2868 1741

PRINCIPAL REGISTRARS

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

REGISTRARS IN HONG KONG
Tricor Secretaries Limited

17/F

Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Note:

(1) appointed as Chief Financial Officer with effect from 22 April 2022 and
appointed as Executive Director and a member of Sustainability Committee
with effect from 8 July 2022

2) resigned as Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director and ceased to be
a member of Sustainability Committee with effect from 22 April 2022
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